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FENNEMORE CRAIG 
P R O F E S S I O N A L  CORPORATION 

P H O E N I X  

RECEIVED 

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C. 
A Professional Corporation 
Jay L. Shapiro (No. 014650) 
Patrick J. Black (No. 017141) 
3003 North Central Avenue 
Suite 2600 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 
Telephone (602) 916-5000 

ZODb APR I3 I P 3: 53 

kZ CORP CaflMISSlO~i 
~ C U ~ I E ~  I’ CO i”l TR 3~ 

Attorneys for Southern Sunrise Water Company 

Arizona Corporation Comrnissior 
DOCKETED 

BEFORE THE AFUZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION 
OF SOUTHERN SUNRISE WATER 
COMPANY FOR A CERTIFICATE OF 
CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY TO 
PROVIDE WATER SERVICE IN COCHISE 
COUNTY, ARIZONA. 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF 
CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 8 40-282 and A.A.C. R14-2-402, Southern Sunrise Water Company 

(“Applicant” or “Company”), an Arizona corporation, hereby applies to the Arizona Corporation 

Commission (“Commission”) for an Order granting Applicant a new Certificate of Convenience 

and Necessity (“CC&N”) to provide water utility service in certain defined portions of Cochise 

County, Arizona. The requested CC&N includes the areas previously served by the Cochise 

Water Company, Miracle Valley Water Company and Horseshoe Ranch Water Company 

(collectively “Southern McLain Systems”). 

INTRODUCTION 

I. Background. 

Applicant comes before the Commission after an extraordinary process involving the 

Southern McLain Systems, and the Commission’s efforts to help these water utility systems find 

a new owner/operator with the financial resources, managerial structure and technical experience 

to provide adequate and reliable water utility service to existing customers in Cochise County. 

The Southern McLain Systems are part of a larger group of affiliated water utility companies that 

also include the Mustang Water Company, Crystal Water Company, Sierra Sunset Water 
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Company and Coronado Estates Water Company (“Northern McLain Systems”) (collectively 

referred to as the “McLain Water Systems”). Those water systems not included in this 

proceeding are being addressed in a separate CC&N application concurrently filed by the 

Applicant’s affiliate, Northern Sunrise Water Company (“NSWC”).’ See In the Matter of the 

Application of Northern Sunrise Water Company for a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

to Provide Water Utility Service in Cochise County, Arizona. 

The troubled history surrounding the McLain Water Systems is well-chronicled in 

Commission Decision No. 68412 (January 23, 2006). Previous ownership allowed these systems 

to fall into a state of serious disrepair, and numerous violations cited by the Arizona Department 

of Environmental Resources (“ADEQ”) brought into question the potential for risk to the health 

and safety of customers being served by them. Property and sales taxes associated with these 

systems were not paid for almost 15 years, and water utility service was being extended to 

customers outside of the CC&N boundaries of these systems in violation of Arizona law. 

Ultimately, the previous owners filed for Chapter 13 bankruptcy relief under Title 11 of the 

United States Bankruptcy Code. See In re Johnny A.  McLain, et al., Case No. 4-03-bk-04125 

TUC-EWH. 

On October 22, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court for the District of Arizona tentatively 

approved a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) executed by Algonquin Water 

Resources, Inc. (“Algonquin”), which provided for the purchase of the water utility assets 

included in the McLain Bankruptcy Estate. Cochise County is the creditor-in-interest. On March 

20, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court for the District issued an Order confirming the sale to Algonquin 

for an aggregate purchase price of $696,752.14. This amount was equal to the fair value rate 

bases of the McLain Water Systems as determined by the Commission. See Decision No. 68412. 

A copy of Bankruptcy Court order is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 

~~ ~ 

Applicant has concurrently filed a Motion to Consolidate the NSWC CC&N Application with this and other 1 

proceedings. 
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11. Issuance of New CC&N to Two Separate Entities. 

Before the closing of the transaction already approved by the Bankruptcy Court can take 

place, certain other matters required to legally facilitate the transfer of assets must be finalized. 

Algonquin is required, among other things, to obtain Commission approval for: 1) the issuance of 

all CC&Ns necessary to provide water utility service to customers of the McLain Water Systems; 

and 2) the sale and transfer of a public service corporation’s assets as required by A.R.S. 9 40- 

285. This Application addresses the first issue. Applicant is jointly filing a separate application 

with NSWC for Commission approval to transfer the McLain Water Systems assets, based on 

geographic location, to two separate entities with distinct CC&Ns (“Joint Application”). See In 

the Matter of the Joint Application of Northern Sunrise Water Company and Southern Sunrise 

Water Company for the Approval of Sale and Transfer of Water Utility Assets, and Cancellation 

of CertEficates of Convenience and Necessity. 

Algonquin chose to consolidate the three water utility systems that make up the Southern 

McLain Systems into one CC&N based on their geographical location and system configuration. 

Applicant must, among other things, construct new water storage facilities, add pressure tanks 

and booster stations, increase current well capacity, replace existing mains and valves, and map 

the existing water systems so that the Company can add operational automation to ensure safe and 

reliable operation. Applicant will need to invest a significant amount of capital in order to bring 

the McLain Water Systems into compliance with state and federal regulations. See Summary 

record (prepared by the ADEQ) of the compliance history of the McLain Water Systems, attached 

hereto as Exhibit 2; See also Decision No. 68412 at 7 19. Algonquin has determined that the 

most efficient and equitable way to begin the monumental task of improving the McLain Water 

Systems is to consolidate them into two new public service corporations. This issue is addressed 

in more detail in the Joint Application. See Joint Application at p 6. 

- 3 -  
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111. New Water Utility Service Rates and Charges. 

Because of the reorganization and subsequent investment in capital improvements, a new 

rate structure is required and the Commission must make findings as are typical in any application 

for a new CC&N. In this case, that means new rates must be calculated to take into account the 

fair value of the Southern McLain Systems assets as established in Decision No. 68412 

($604,725)2, the cost of new infrastructure and other capital improvements that must be added 

almost immediately ($32 1,900), and costs associated with the participation in the process that 

lead to the acquisition of the McLain Water Systems assets (“Acquisition Costs”) ($235,28 1). 

Applicant’s proposed fair value rate base is approximately $1,162,006 as shown in Exhibit 7, 

attached hereto and further discussed below. Applicant’s proposed rates are shown in Exhibit 8, 

attached hereto and further discussed below. 

On January 6, 2006, the Arizona Small Utilities Association of Arizona (“ASUA”) filed 

an emergency application for interim rates as the interim manager of the McLain Water  system^.^ 

On March 28, 2006, Administrative Law Judge Rodda issued a recommended opinion and order 

(“ROO”) that, among other things: 

1) grants interim rate relief subject to the filing of an application for a permanent rate 

increase no later than March 15,2007, using a 2006 test year; 

2) approves a System Improvement Surcharge (SIS) as a means to collect revenue in 

order to pay debts and make relevant improvements; 

3) requires any future owner of the Southern McLain Systems to maintain a separate bank 

account in which all revenue derived from the SIS must be deposited; and 

This is not the exact figure established in Decision No. 68412 due to the allocation of land value 
and land rights for each separate water system. 

In the Matter of the Application for Emergency Interim Rate Relief for Miracle Valley Water 
Company, Inc., Cochise Water Company, Horseshoe Ranch Water Company, Cvystal Water 
Company, Mustang Water Company, Sierra Sunset Water Company and Coronado Estates Water 
Company, Owned by Johnny A. McLain; Docket No. W-01646A-06-0010 et al. 

- 4 -  
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4) requires any future owner to apply the SIS funds on a pro-rata basis to each of the 

systems to correct water outages as they occur, pay debts to local vendors and make system 

improvements. 

These particular recommended conditions raise concerns for the Applicant as each bears 

upon this request to establish new CC&Ns for the Southern McLain Systems. For one thing, 

under Section 9.2 of the Agreement, all regulatory approvals and transfers shall be approved 

without the imposition of any restrictions, conditions, or obligations that are unacceptable to 

Algonquin in its sole discretion. 2006 also represents too early a test year upon which to establish 

permanent rates. Applicant asserts that, under its proposal to immediately upgrade the water 

systems within the first year of operation, at least twelve months of data is needed to establish 

proper operating revenues and expenses that are more reflective of normal operating conditions. 

Therefore, Applicant is willing to stipulate in this proceeding to file a rate application with the 

Commission by June 30,2008, using a 2007 test year. 

In addition, several of the proposed conditions related to the SIS appear designed to “run 

with the plant” and bind future owners irrespective of the basis upon which the transfer of the 

McLain Water System occurs. Such conditions are impractical given the new CC&N and rate 

structure proposed herein. Furthermore, the SIS has been proposed because the McLain Water 

Systems do not have an ability to raise additional capital to make necessary improvements. See 

ROO at 7 17. By approving this CC&N application, Northern Sunrise Water Company’s CC&N 

application and the Joint Application, the Commission will forego the need for the SIS. 

Therefore, Applicant asserts that in moving forward and approving this Application, the 

Commission specifically exempt Applicant from any condition imposed in the ASUA emergency 

rate application that run with the plant and bind future owners. 

Applicant is a fit and proper entity to provide water service to customers in Cochise 

County. Algonquin is a utility holding company that owns and operates several water and 

- 5 -  
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wastewater companies in Ar i~ona .~  Applicant maintains that by granting the CC&N and rate 

structure requested herein, the Commission will: 1) address immediate health and safety concerns 

by providing some of the approvals and assurances necessary in Applicant's efforts to bring the 

water utility systems into regulatory compliance; 2) allow for the Applicant to begin the 

immediate repair and improvement of these systems to ensure reliable operation for present and 

future customers; and 3) ensure proper regulation of water utility service in the subject portions of 

f pro 

Cochise County, in the public interest, through continued Commission oversight. 

APPLICATION 

In support of this Application, Applicant states as follows: 

1. Applicant is a public service corporation formed for the purpose riding 

The proper name, address and corporate water utility service in Cochise County, Arizona. 

structure for Applicant are attached hereto as Exhibit 3. 

2. 

3. 

Applicant's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws are attached hereto as Exhibit 4. 

The area covered by this Application will contain approximately 845 existing 

connections. 

4. The list and approximate cost of individual water infrastructure equipment 

upgrades and new facilities required immediately to bring this operations up to some minimum 

standard are attached hereto as Exhibit 5. 

5. Applicant's management contact is Greg Sorensen, Algonquin Water Resources of 

America, Inc., whose business address is 12725 West Indian School Road, Suite D101, Avondale, 

Arizona 85323. The telephone number is (623) 935-9429. 

6. Applicant's operator certified by the ADEQ is Larry Diaz. His business address is 

4055 Campus Drive, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635. His telephone number is 520-548-5470. 

7. Applicant's attorneys are Fennemore Craig, whose address is 3003 North Central 

Bella Vista Water Company, Litchfield Park Service Company; Gold Canyon Sewer Company, 4 

Black Mountain Sewer Corporation and Rio Rico Utilities. 

- 6 -  
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Avenue, Suite 2600, Phoenix, Arizona 85012-29 13. The individual attorney responsible for this 

application is Jay L. Shapiro. Mr. Shapiro’s telephone number is (602) 916-5366. All Data 

Requests or other Requests for Information should be directed to Greg Sorensen, with a 

copy to Mr. Shapiro’s attention, on behalf of Southern Sunrise Water Company. 

8. A description of existing water infrastructure in the Southern McLain Systems 

known to Applicant at this time, as documented by the Commission Staff in its Reconstruction 

Cost New Less Depreciation (“RCND”) Study, is attached hereto as Exhibit 6. 

9. The total estimated cost of: 1) existing Southern McLain Systems assets; 2) 

immediate capital improvements to repair existing water utility infrastructure; and 3) Acquisition 

Costs as a regulatory asset, is attached hereto as Exhibit 7 (Ratebase Schedule). 

10. A copy and description of the new tariff rate schedule and statement of charges is 

attachedhereto as Exhibit 8. 

11. A map indicating the area requested by this Application (“Service Area”), and 

legal descriptions for all relevant properties, are attached hereto as Exhibit 9. However, as stated, 

the previous owners of the McLain Water Systems have connected new customers without 

seeking amendment of the CC&Ns. Accordingly, the area covered by this CC&N requests will 

not likely include every customer served by the existing systems. Applicant will continue to 

ascertain the location of customers and provide subsequent legal descriptions to Staff so the 

CC&N maps can be updated. 

12. The manner of capitalization and methods of financing employed by Applicant 

will include a combination of paid-in shareholder capital contributions, and advances and/or 

contributions through line extension agreements, as appropriate. Should the Applicant require 

debt to finance system improvements, a financing application will be filed with the Commission. 

13. A general Statement of Financial Condition for Algonquin Power Income Fund, 

the parent of Algonquin Water Resources of America, Inc., Applicant’s parent, is attached hereto 

as Exhibit 10. 

- 7 -  
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14. Construction of infrastructure improvements and new facilities is estimated to 

commence within 90 days of receipt of all necessary government approvals. 

15. The estimated numbers of customers to be served in each of the first five years of 

water utility service to the Service Area is as follows: 

Estimated Number of Residential Customers 

lSt Year 845 
Year 850 

3rd Year 860 
4th Year 870 
5th Year 880 

16. Applicant's estimated annual operating revenue and operating expenses for each of 

the first five years of operation in the new area covered by this Application, is as follows: 

Operating Expenses Operating Revenue 

lSt Year 345,006 lSt Year 479,876 
2nd Year 355,045 2nd Year 482,965 
3rd Year 361,962 3rd Year 488,644 
4'" Year 368,986 4th Year 494,323 
5 th Year 376,107 sth Year 500,002 

17. The plant cost projections by year for the next five (5) years, as more particularly 

described in Exhibit 11, is as follows: 

Plant Cost Proiection 

lSt Year $321,900 
2nd Year $326,000 
3rd Year $330,100 
4th Year $334,200 
5th Year $338,300 

18. Applicant shall obtain all appropriate city, county and/or state agency approvals 

required to provide water utility service in the requested area. 

- 8 -  
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19. ADEQ Approvals to Construct issued for facilities to be constructed in the Service 

Area will be provided tO the Commission as soon as Applicant receives them. Getting these 

approvals on terms and conditions acceptable to the Applicant is an essential precondition. As an 

example; given that the systems are currently out of compliance with prevailing ADEQ 

regulations and are hence liable to enforcement action at any time an understanding respecting a 

program and a schedule to bring them to compliance concurrent with the transfer of the request 

permits and authorizations is imperative. 

20. 

21. 

Notice of this Application will be given as required by the Commission. 

For the reasons stated herein, Applicant maintains that this Application is in the 

public interest and should be granted. There is a present need for regulated water utility service 

in Cochise County to ensure the public health, and foster orderly growth. 

WHEREFORE, Applicant respectfully requests the following: 

A. That the Commission proceeds to consider and act upon this Application as timely 

as possible and to schedule a hearing, if necessary, on this matter; 

B. That upon completion of said hearing that the Commission enter an Order 

approving application for a new Certificate of Convenience and Necessity, which shall include 

the Service Area requested by this Application as shown in Exhibit 9; and further include 

direction to Commission Staff to accept and include in the CC&N authorized herein, post- 

decision requests by Applicant to amend the CC&N boundaries to include legal description for 

any customers currently being served by the McLain Water System who are not specifically 

included in this CC&N order. 

C. That the Commission make a fair value finding as shown in Exhibit 7 and approve 

the new tariff schedule and rate design as shown in Exhibit 8; 

D. That in approving this Application, the Commission specifically exempt Applicant 

from any conditions imposed on any future owner of the McLain Water Systems that are 

established in the emergency rate application filed by ASUA, Docket No. W-01646A-06-0010 et 

- 9 -  
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al.; and 

E. That the Commission grant such other and further relief as may be appropriate 

under the circumstances herein. + 
DATED this\\ day of April, 2006. 

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C. 

ORIGINAL and 13 copies delivered this 
I m a y  of April, 2006, to: 

Docket Control 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Copies hand delivered this \\3 th day 
of April, 2006 to: 

Chairman Jeff Hatch-Miller 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Commissioner Marc Spitzer 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Commissioner William A. Mundell 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Commissioner Mike Gleason 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 
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Commissioner Kristin Mayes 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Hearing Division 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Jason Gellman, Esq. 
Legal Division 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

By: 
1777379.1/10577.002 
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ORDERED. LEWIS 
R5EA LLP 

L A W Y E R S  

Dated: March 20,2006 
Ore South Church Avenue. Suite 700 
Tucson, Arizwa 85701-161 1 
Facsmlc (520) 879.4705 
Telephone (520) 622-4427 

Rob Charles, State Bar No. 007359 
Email: rcharles@lrlaw.com 

Attorneys for Algonqutn Water Resources ofhenca, Inc. 
EILEEN W. HOLLOWELL 
U.S. Bankruptcy Judge 

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 

DISTRICT OF ARIZONA 

In re: 

Johnny A. McLain and Linda M. McLain, 
husband and wife, 

No. 4:03- 

the estate’s interests in various water 

a Purchase and Sale Agreement dated 

Court by creditor Cochise C 

this Court’s approval of the s 

County to Authorize a 

ent”) filed with this 

Motion and Application by Cochise 

ter Companies Free and Clear of Liens; 

a Payment to Creditors at Closing in 

Accordance with Confi 

) (DE 130). The Sale Motion was filed by Cochise 

mended Liquidating Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan7’) 

this Court’s August 4,2004 Order Confirming as Modfled 

Liquidating Plan of Reorganization Filed June 2,2004 by 

e County (the “Confirmation Order”) (DE 135). 

1956902 

mailto:rcharles@lrlaw.com
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L A W Y E R S  

At the hearing, Algonquin committed to promptly file its application for issuance 

of Certificates of Convenience and Necessity (“CC&Ns”) and transfer to Algonquin of 

the Property. 

Section 9.2 of the Agreement provides: 

9.2 Transfer Approval: A condition for the sale and purchase is 

~ The Court set a Status Hearing to mo 

Good cause appearing from th 

IT IS ORDERED: 

1. The prior sale t greement is confirmed at a 

earing in this case concerning the progress 

toward the Closing on 0 a.m. Interested parties may appear by 

United States Bankruptcy Judge 
District of Arizona 

3 

1956902 
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LEwrrs 
R E A  LLP 

L A W Y E R S 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEWIS AND ROCA LLP 

By / S I  RC 007359 
Rob Charles 

One South Church Avenue, Suite 700 
Tucson, Arizona 85701-161 1 
Tel: 520-629-4427 Fax: 520-879-4705 
Email: rcharles lrlaw.com 
Attorneys for A e gonquin Water Resources of America, Inc. 

LAW OFFICE OF MICHAEL 

By: /s/ MMN 04331 
Michael M. Neal 

m e a l  c@ west.net 
110 S. 8 1  hurc Ave., Suite 4298 
Tucson, AZ 85701 
Co-Counsel for Cochise County 

and 

M. NEAL, P.C. 

Charles A. Irwin, Esq. 
cinvin@co.cochise.az.us 
Office of the County Attorne 
P.O. Box CA 
Bisbee, AZ 85603 
Co-Counsel for Cochis 
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Address : 

Exhibit 3 

Southern Sunrise Water Company Inc. 

4055 Campus Drive 
Sierra Vista, Arizona 85635 

Form of Organization: Arizona Corporation 

President: Ian Robertson 
2845 Bristol Circle 
Oakville, Ontario, Canada L6H 7H7 

Secretary: Peter Kampian 
2845 Bristol Circle 
Oakville, Ontario, Canada L6H 7H7 
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BYLAWS 
OF 

SOUTHERN SUNRISE WATER COMPANY INC. 

ARTICLE I 
Articles of Incorporation 

Section 1.01. Reference to Articles. Any reference herein made to the corporation’s 
articles shall be deemed to refer to its articles of incorporation and all amendments thereto as of 
any given time on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission (or any successor to its 
functions). 

Section 1.02. Seniority. The articles shall in all respects be considered senior and 
superior to these bylaws, with any inconsistency to be resolved in favor of the articles, and with 
these bylaws to be deemed automatically amended from time to time to eliminate any such 
inconsistency which may then exist. 

ARTICLE I1 
Corporation Offices 

Section2.01. Known Place of Business. The known place of business of the 
corporation in the State of Arizona shall be the office of its statutory agent unless otherwise 
designated in the articles or as provided in Section 2.02 hereof. The corporation may have such 
other offices, either within or outside of the State of Arizona, as the board of directors may 
designate or as the business of the corporation may require from time to time. 

Section 2.02. Changes. The board of directors may change the corporation’s known 
place of business or its statutory agent from time to time by filing a statement with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission pursuant to applicable law. 

ARTICLE I11 
Shareholders 

Section 3.01. Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of the shareholders shall be held on 
March 31 each year, or on such other date as may be determined by the board of directors from 
time to time, commencing with the year 2007, at a time and place as determined by the board of 
directors, or in the absence of action by the board, as set forth in the notice given, or waiver 
signed, with respect to such meeting pursuant to Section 3.03 below. At the annual meeting, 
shareholders shall elect a board of directors and transact such other business as may be properly 
brought before the meeting. If for any reason any annual meeting is not held during the period 
set forth above, a deferred annual meeting may thereafter be called and held in lieu thereof, at 
which the same proceedings (including the election of directors) may be conducted. The failure 
to hold an annual meeting during the period set forth above shall not affect the validity of any 
corporate action. Any director elected at any annual meeting, deferred annual meeting or special 
meeting shall continue in office until the election of his successor, subject to his earlier 
resignation pursuant to Section 7.01 below or his removal by the shareholders pursuant to 
Section 4.10 below. 
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Section 3.02. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the shareholders may be held 
whenever and wherever called for by the chairman of the board, the president or the board of 
directors, the written demand of the holders of not less than ten percent (10%) of all issued and 
outstanding shares of each voting group of the corporation entitled to vote at any such meeting, 
or as otherwise required by state law. Any written demand by shareholders shall state the 
purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting, and business to be transacted at any such meeting 
shall be confined to the purposes stated in the notice thereof, and to such additional matters as 
the chairman of the meeting may rule to be germane to such purposes. 

Section 3.03. Notices. Not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the 
date of any meeting of the shareholders and at the direction of the person or persons calling the 
meeting, the secretary of the corporation, or any other officer of the corporation or other person 
directed by the board of directors, shall cause a written notice setting forth the date, time and 
place, and, with respect to special meetings only, a description of the purpose or purposes for 
which the meeting is called, to be delivered to each shareholder of record at his last address as it 
appears on the corporation’s records on the applicable record date; provided that notice may be 
communicated orally if it is reasonable to do so under the circumstances. Notice may be 
communicated in person, by telephone, telegraph, teletype, facsimile or other form of wire or 
wireless communication or by mail or private carrier, and shall be deemed given and effective as 
provided by law. 

Section3.04. Waiver of Notice. Any shareholder may waive call or notice of any 
annual, deferred annual or special meeting (and any adjournment thereof) at any time before, 
during which, or after it is held. Attendance of a shareholder at any such meeting in person or by 
proxy shall: (i) waive objection to lack of notice or defective notice of the meeting, unless the 
shareholder at the beginning of the meeting objects to holding the meeting or transacting 
business at the meeting; and (ii) waive objection to consideration of a particular matter at the 
meeting that is not within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice, unless the 
shareholder objects to considering the matter when it is presented. No call or notice of a meeting 
of the shareholders shall be necessary if each shareholder waives the same in writing or by 
attendance. 

Section 3.05. Shareholders of Record. For the purpose of determining shareholders 
entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of shareholders (and at any adjournment of such 
meeting), or shareholders entitled to consent to corporate action without a meeting or 
shareholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend, or for any other lawful action, the 
board of directors may fix in advance a record date which shall not be more than seventy (70) 
days before the date of such meeting or any such other action. 

If no record date is fixed by the board of directors for determining shareholders entitled 
to notice of, and to vote at, a meeting of shareholders, the record date shall be at 4:OO in the 
afternoon on the day before the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the 
commencement of the meeting. If no record date is fixed for determining shareholders entitled 
to express written consent to corporate action without a meeting, the record date shall be the time 
of the day on which the first written consent is served upon an officer or director of the 
corporation. 
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A determination of shareholders of record entitled to notice of, and to vote at, a meeting 
of shareholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the board 
of directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting; and provided hrther that the 
board of directors shall fix a new record date for any meeting adjourned to a date more than one 
hundred twenty (120) days after the date fixed for the original meeting. 

Section 3.06. -. After fixing a record date for a meeting, the 
corporation shall prepare an alphabetical list of the names of all of its shareholders who are 
entitled to notice of the meeting. The list shall be arranged by voting group, and within each 
voting group by class or series of shares, and shall show the address of and number of shares 
held by each shareholder. The shareholders’ list shall be available for inspection by any 
shareholder, beginning two (2) business days after notice of the meeting is given for which the 
list was prepared and continuing through the meeting, at the corporation’s principal office, the 
office of the corporation’s transfer agent if specified in the meeting notice or at another place 
identified in the meeting notice in the city where the meeting will be held. A shareholder, his 
agent or his attorney, on written demand, may inspect and, subject to Arizona law, copy the list 
during regular business hours and at his expense during the period it is available for inspection. 
The corporation shall make the shareholders’ list available at the meeting, and any shareholder, 
his agent or his attorney may inspect the list at any time during the meeting or any adjournment 
thereof. The corporation’s refusal or failure to prepare or make available the shareholders’ list 
does not affect the validity of action taken at the meeting. 

Section3.07. Proxies. Any shareholder entitled to vote may vote by proxy at any 
meeting of the shareholders (and at any adjournment thereof) which is specified in such proxy, 
provided that the proxy is executed in writing by such shareholder or his duly authorized 
attorney-in-fact. An appointment of a proxy is effective when received by the secretary or other 
officer or agent authorized to tabulate votes. No proxy shall be valid after eleven (1 1) months 
from the date of its execution, unless otherwise specifically provided thereon. The burden of 
proving the validity of any undated, irrevocable or otherwise contested proxy at a meeting of the 
shareholders shall rest with the person seeking to exercise the proxy. A telegram, cablegram or 
facsimile appearing to have been transmitted by a shareholder or by his duly authorized attorney- 
in-fact may be accepted as a sufficiently written and executed proxy. 

Section 3.08. Voting. Except for the election of directors (which shall be governed by 
cumulative voting pursuant to applicable law) and except as may otherwise be required by the 
corporation’s articles, these bylaws or by statute, each issued and outstanding share of the 
corporation (specifically excluding shares held in the treasury of the corporation) represented at 
any meeting of the shareholders in person or by a proxy given pursuant to Section 3.07 above, 
shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the shareholders at such 
meeting. Except for the election of directors (which shall be governed by cumulative voting 
pursuant to applicable law) and except as may otherwise be required by the corporation’s articles 
or by applicable law, any question submitted to the shareholders shall be resolved by a majority 
of the votes cast thereon, provided that such votes constitute a majority of the quorum of that 
particular meeting whether or not such quorum is then present. Except as otherwise provided in 
the corporation’s articles, directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at an election, 
provided that a quorum has been formed at the meeting, whether or not a quorum is then present. 
Voting shall be by ballot on any question as to which a ballot vote is demanded before the voting 
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begins, by any person entitled to vote on such question; otherwise, a voice vote shall suffice. No 
ballot or change of vote shall be accepted after the polls have been declared closed following the 
ending of the announced time for voting. 

Section 3.09. Voting of Shares by Certain Holders. Shares of the corporation held by 
another corporation may be voted by such corporation's officer, agent or proxy as its bylaws may 
prescribe, or in the absence of such bylaw provision, by any other person designated by 
resolution of its board of directors, and such officer, agent or other person so designated may 
vote such corporation's shares in this corporation in person or by proxy appointed by him. 

Shares held by an administrator, executor, legal representative, guardian, conservator or 
other legal representative may be voted by such representative, either in person or by proxy, 
without a transfer of such shares into his name. Shares standing in the name of a trustee, other 
than a trustee in bankruptcy, may be voted by such representative, either in person or by proxy, 
but no such trustee shall be entitled to vote shares held by him without a transfer of such shares 
into his name. 

Shares standing in the name of a receiver, trustee in bankruptcy or assignee for the 
benefit of creditors may be voted by such representative, either in person or by proxy. Shares 
held by or under the control of such a receiver or trustee may be voted by such receiver or 
trustee, either in person or by proxy, without the transfer thereof into his name if authority so to 
do is contained in an appropriate order of the court by which such receiver or trustee was 
appointed. 

A shareholder whose shares are pledged shall be entitled to vote such shares until the 
shares have been transferred into the name of the pledgee, and thereafter the pledgee shall be 
entitled to vote the shares so transferred. 

If shares stand in the names of two or more persons, whether fiduciaries, members of a 
partnership, joint tenants, tenants in common, tenants by the entirety or tenants by community 
property or otherwise, or if two or more persons have the same fiduciary relationship respecting 
the same shares, unless the corporation is given a written instrument or order appointing them or 
creating the relationship wherein it is so provided, their acts with respect to voting shall have the 
following effect: (i) if only one votes, his act binds; (ii) if more than one votes, the act of the 
majority so voting binds all; and (iii) if more than one votes, but the vote is evenly split on any 
particular matter, each faction may vote the shares in question proportionally. 

Section 3.10. Ouorum. At any meeting of the shareholders, the presence in person or by 
proxy of the holders of a majority of the shares of the corporation issued, outstanding and 
entitled to vote at the meeting shall constitute a quorum of the shareholders for all purposes. In 
the absence of a quorum, any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by its chairman, 
without notice other than by announcement at the meeting, until a quorum is formed. At any 
such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business may be transacted which 
might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed. Once a quorum has been 
formed at any meeting, the shareholders from time to time remaining in attendance may continue 
to transact business properly brought before the meeting until adjournment, notwithstanding the 
prior departure of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum. If an adjournment is for 
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more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the 
adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each shareholder of 
record entitled to vote at the meeting. 

Section 3.1 1. Election Inspectors. The board of directors, in advance of any meeting of 
the shareholders, may appoint an election inspector or inspectors to act at such meeting (and at 
any adjournment thereof). If an election inspector or inspectors are not so appointed, the 
chairman of the meeting may, or upon request of any person entitled to vote at the meeting shall, 
make such appointment. If any person appointed as an inspector fails to appear or to act, a 
substitute may be appointed by the chairman of the meeting. If appointed, the election inspector 
or inspectors (acting through a majority of them if there are more than one) shall determine the 
number of shares outstanding, the authenticity, validity and effect of proxies and the number of 
shares represented at the meeting in person and by proxy; the election inspector(s) shall receive 
and count votes, ballots and consents and announce the results thereof; the election inspector(s) 
shall hear and determine all challenges and questions pertaining to proxies and voting; and, in 
general, the election inspector(s) shall perform such acts as may be proper to conduct elections 
and voting with complete fairness to all shareholders. No such election inspector need be a 
shareholder of the corporation. 

Section 3.12. Organization and Conduct of Meetings. Each meeting of the shareholders 
shall be called to order and thereafter chaired by the chairman of the board of directors if there is 
one; or, if not, or if the chairman of the board is absent or so requests, then by the president; or if 
both the chairman of the board and the president are unavailable, then by such other officer of 
the corporation or such shareholder as may be appointed by the board of directors. The 
corporation’s secretary shall act as secretary of each meeting of the shareholders; in his absence 
the chairman of the meeting may appoint any person (whether a shareholder or not) to act as 
secretary for the meeting. After calling a meeting to order, the chairman thereof may require the 
registration of all shareholders intending to vote in person and the filing of all proxies with the 
election inspector(s), if one or more have been appointed (or, if not, with the secretary of the 
meeting). After the announced time for such filing of proxies has ended, no further proxies or 
changes, substitutions or revocations of proxies shall be accepted. If directors are to be elected, a 
tabulation of the proxies so filed shall, if any person entitled to vote in such election so requests, 
be announced at the meeting (or adjournment thereof) before the closing of the election polls. 
Absent a showing of bad faith on his part, the chairman of a meeting shall, among other things, 
have absolute authority to fix the period of time allowed for the registration of shareholders and 
the filing of proxies, to determine the order of business to be conducted at such meeting and to 
establish reasonable rules for expediting the business of the meeting (including any informal, or 
question and answer portions thereof). 

Section 3.13. Shareholder Approval or Ratification. The board of directors may submit 
any contract or act for approval or ratification of the shareholders, either at a duly constituted 
meeting of the shareholders or by unanimous written consent to corporate action without a 
meeting pursuant to Section 3.15 below. If any contract or act so submitted is approved or 
ratified by a majority of the votes cast thereon at such meeting or by such unanimous written 
consent, the same shall be valid and as binding upon the corporation and all of its shareholders as 
it would be if it were the act of the shareholders. 
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Section 3.14. Informalities and Irregularities. All informalities or irregularities in any 
call or notice of a meeting of the shareholders or in the areas of credentials, proxies, quorums, 
voting and similar matters shall be deemed waived if no objection is made at the meeting. 

Section 3.15. Action by Shareholders Without a Meeting. Any action required or 
permitted to be taken at a meeting of the shareholders of the corporation may be taken without a 
meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by all of the 
shareholders entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent may be 
executed in counterparts and shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote of the shareholders 
of the corporation at a duly convened meeting. 

Section 3.16. Meetings by Alternative Communications. The board of directors may 
permit any or all of the shareholders to participate in any annual or special meeting of 
shareholders or conduct the meeting through use of any means of communication by which all of 
the shareholders participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. If the 
board elects to permit participation by such means of communication, the notice of the meeting 
shall specify how a shareholder may participate in the meeting by such means of communication. 
The participation may be limited by the board of directors to specified locations or means of 
communication. A shareholder participating in a meeting by this means is deemed to be present 
in person at the meeting. 

ARTICLE IV 
Board of Directors 

Section 4.01. Membership. The board of directors shall be comprised of not less than 
one (1) nor more than five (5) members who need not be shareholders of the corporation or 
residents of the State of Arizona. The directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of the 
shareholders. The board of directors shall have the power to increase or decrease its size within 
the aforesaid limits and to fill any vacancies that may occur in its membership in the interval 
between the annual meetings of the shareholders, whether resulting from an increase in the size 
of the board or otherwise. Each director elected by the shareholders or the board of directors 
shall hold office until his successor is duly elected and qualified; provided, however, that the 
shareholders entitled to vote for the election of directors at a shareholders’ meeting may fill any 
vacancy in the board of directors, if not already filled, or substitute another person to fill the 
vacancy, in which case the term of office of the person elected by the board of directors shall 
forthwith terminate. 

Section 4.02. General Powers. All corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the 
authority of and the business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed under the direction 
of the board of directors. 

Section4.03. Regular Meetings. A regular annual meeting of the board of directors 
shall be held as soon as practicable after the adjournment of each annual meeting of the 
shareholders, either at the place of the shareholders’ meeting or at such other place as the 
directors elected at the shareholders’ meeting may have been informed of at or before the time of 
their election. Additional regular meetings may be held at regular intervals on such dates and at 
such places and times as the board of directors may determine. 
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Section 4.04. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board of directors may be held 
whenever and wherever called for by the chairman of the board, the president, or the number of 
directors that would be required to constitute a quorum. 

Section4.05. Notices. No notice need be given of regular meetings of the board of 
directors. Notice of the date, time and place of any special meeting shall be given to each 
director in person, by telephone, telegraph, teletype, facsimile or other form of wire or wireless 
communication or by mail or private carrier addressed to him at his latest address appearing on 
the corporation’s records, and shall be given at least two days before the meeting. Notice must 
be in writing unless oral notice is reasonable under the circumstances. Any person who has 
given notice hereunder may make an affidavit that notice was given, which shall be conclusive 
that notice was so given. 

Section 4.06. Waiver of Notice. Any director may waive call or notice of any meeting 
(and any adjournment thereof) at any time before, during which, or after it is held. A director’s 
attendance or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to him of the meeting unless 
the director at the beginning of the meeting or promptly on his arrival objects to holding the 
meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action 
taken at the meeting. No call or notice of a meeting of directors shall be necessary if each of 
them waives the same in writing or by attendance. Any meeting, once properly called and 
noticed (or as to which call and notice have been waived) and at which a quorum is formed, may 
be adjourned to another time and place by a majority of those in attendance. 

Section4.07. Quorum. A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting or 
adjourned meeting of the board of directors shall consist of a majority of the directors then in 
office, except that when a vacancy or vacancies exist in the board, a majority of the directors 
then in office shall constitute a quorum. Once a quorum has been formed at any meeting, the 
directors from time to time remaining in attendance may continue to transact business properly 
brought before the meeting until adjournment, notwithstanding the prior departure fiom the 
meeting of enough directors to leave less than a quorum. 

Section 4.08. m. Any matter submitted to a meeting of the board of directors shall 
be resolved by a majority of the votes cast thereon. Voting rights of members of the board of 
directors may be altered by separate agreement entered into by all shareholders of the 
corporation. 

Section 4.09. Power to Act Notwithstandinp Vacancy. Pending the filling of vacancies 
in the board of directors, a majority of a full board of directors may exercise the powers of the 
board of directors. 

Section 4.10. Removal. Any director may be removed from the board of directors, with 
or without cause, subject only to limitations provided by law. 

Section 4.1 1. Executive Committee. The board of directors, by resolution adopted by a 
majority of the full board, may name one or more of its members as an executive committee. An 
executive committee shall have and may exercise the powers of the board of directors in the 
management of the business and affairs of the corporation while the board is not in session, 
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subject to such limitations as may be included in the board’s resolution; provided, however, that 
an executive committee shall not have the authority of the board of directors in reference to the 
following matters: (i) the authorization of distributions; (ii) the approval or submission to 
shareholders of any action that requires shareholder approval under applicable law; (iii) the 
filling of vacancies on the board of directors or on any committee of the board of directors; (iv) 
the amendment of the articles of incorporation; (v) the adoption, amendment or repeal of the 
bylaws; (vi) approval of a plan of merger not requiring shareholder approval; (vii) authorization 
or approval of a reacquisition of shares, except according to a formula or method prescribed by 
the board of directors; (viii) authorization or approval of the issuance, sale or contract for sale of 
shares or determination of the designation and relative rights, preferences and limitations of a 
class or series of shares, except that the board of directors may authorize the executive 
committee or an executive officer of the corporation to do so within limits specifically prescribed 
by the board of directors; and (ix) fixing the compensation of directors for serving on the board 
or on any committee of the board of directors. Any member of the executive committee may be 
removed, with or without cause, by the board of directors. If any vacancy occurs in the 
executive committee, it shall be filled by the board of directors. The board of directors, with or 
without cause, may dissolve any committee or remove any member thereof at any time. 

Section4.12. Other Committees. The board of directors, from time to time, by 
resolution adopted by a majority of the full board, may appoint other standing or temporary 
committees from its membership and vest such committees with such powers as the board may 
include in its resolution; provided, however, that such committees shall be restricted in their 
authority as specifically set forth with respect to the executive committee in Section 4.1 1 above. 

Section 4.13. Tenure of Committee Members. Except in the case of resignation, 
disqualification, removal or the inability to serve for any reason, each member of any committee 
established under this Article IV shall hold office until the next regular annual meeting of the 
board of directors and until his successor is elected and qualified. 

Section 4.14. Meetings of Committees. Regular meetings of committees established 
under this Article IV may be held without notice on such days and at such times and places as 
the committees may fix fiom time to time by resolution. Special meetings of a committee may 
be called by any member thereof upon notice to other members of the committee in the manner 
provided in Section 4.04 for special meetings of the board of directors. 

Section4.15. Ouorum of Committee Members. A majority of the members of a 
committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting thereof, and 
action of any committee must be authorized by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members 
present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. 

Section 4.16. Presumption of Assent. A director of the corporation who is present at a 
meeting of the board of directors or of any committee at which action is taken on any matter 
shall be deemed to have assented to the action taken unless: (i) the director objects at the 
beginning of the meeting or promptly upon the director’s arrival to holding it or transacting 
business at the meeting; (ii) the director’s dissent or abstention from the action taken is entered in 
the minutes of the meeting; or (iii) the director delivers written notice of his dissent or abstention 
to the presiding officer of the meeting before its adjournment or to the corporation before 5:OO 
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p.m. on the next business day after the meeting. The right of dissent or abstention shall not be 
available to a director who voted in favor of the action. 

Section 4.17. Compensation. By resolution of the board of directors, each director may 
be paid his expenses, if any, of attendance at each meeting of the board of directors or of any 
committee, and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance at each such meeting and/or a stated 
salary as a director or committee member. No such payment shall preclude any director from 
serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefrom. 

Section 4.18. Action by Directors Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted 
to be taken at a meeting of the board of directors or of any committee thereof may be taken 
without a meeting if the action is taken by the all of the directors or committee members. The 
action shall be evidenced by one or more written consents describing the action taken and signed 
by all directors or committee members. Such consent may be executed in counterparts and shall 
have the same effect as a unanimous vote of the directors or committee members of the 
corporation at a duly convened meeting. 

Section 4.19. Meetings by Alternative Communications. The board of directors may 
permit any or all of the directors to participate in any regular or special meeting by or conduct 
the meeting through use of any means of communication by which all of the directors 
participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. A director participating in 
a meeting by this means is deemed to be present in person at the meeting. 

ARTICLE V 
Officers - General 

Section 5.01. Elections and Appointments. The board of directors shall elect or appoint 
a president, a secretary and a treasurer, and may choose a chairman of the board, one or more 
vice presidents or such other officers as the board of directors shall determine. The regular 
election or appointment of officers shall take place at each annual meeting of the board of 
directors, but elections of officers may be held at any other meeting of the board. A person 
elected or appointed to any office shall continue to hold that office until the election or 
appointment of his successor, subject to action earlier taken pursuant to Section 5.04 or 7.01 
below. The same individual may simultaneously hold more than one office in the corporation. 

Section 5.02. Additional Appointments. In addition to the officers contemplated in 
Section 5.01 above, the board of directors may elect or appoint other corporate or divisional 
officers or agents with such authority to perform such duties as may be prescribed from time to 
time by the board of directors, by the president or, in the case of assistant officers (as, for 
example, one or more assistant secretaries), by the superior officer of any person so elected or 
appointed. Each of such persons (in the order designated by the board) shall be vested with all of 
the powers and charged with all of the duties of his superior officer in the event of such superior 
officer’s absence or disability. 

Section 5.03. Bonds and Other Requirements. The board of directors may require any 
officer to give bond to the corporation (with sufficient surety, and conditioned for the faithfid 
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performance of the duties of his office), to make reports to the board and to comply with such 
other conditions as may from time to time be required of him by the board. 

Section 5.04. Removal; Delegation of Duties. The board of directors may remove an 
officer of the corporation at any time with or without cause or temporarily delegate his powers 
and duties to any other officer or to any director. Such removal or delegation shall be without 
prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed or whose powers and duties 
have been delegated. Election or appointment of an officer or agent, even if for a specified term, 
shall not of itself create contract rights. 

Section 5.05. Compensation. The compensation of officers may be fixed from time to 
time by the board of directors or (except as to the president’s own) left to the discretion of the 
president. No officer shall be prevented from receiving compensation by reason of the fact that 
he also is a director of the corporation. 

ARTICLE VI 
Specific Officers 

Section 6.01. Chairman of the Board. The board of directors may elect a chairman to 
serve as a general executive officer of the corporation, and, if specifically designated as such by 
the board, as the chief executive officer of the corporation. If elected, the chairman shall preside 
at all meetings of the board of directors and be vested with such other powers and duties as the 
board may from time to time delegate to him. 

Section 6.02. President and Vice President. Unless otherwise specified by resolution of 
the board of directors, the president shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation. The 
president shall supervise the business and affairs of the corporation and the performance by all of 
its other officers of their respective duties, subject to the control of the board of directors (and of 
its chairman, if the chairman has been specifically designated as chief executive officer of the 
corporation). One or more vice presidents may be elected by the board of directors to perform 
such duties as may be designated by the board or be assigned or delegated to them by the chief 
executive officer. Any one of the vice presidents as authorized by the board shall be vested with 
all of the powers and charged with all of the duties of the president in the event of his absence or 
inability to act. Except as may otherwise be specifically provided in a resolution of the board of 
directors, the president or any vice president shall be a proper officer to sign, on behalf of the 
corporation, any deed, bill of sale, assignment, option, mortgage, pledge, note, bond, evidence of 
indebtedness, application, consent (to service of process or otherwise), agreement, indenture or 
other instrument of any significant importance to the corporation. The president or any vice 
president may represent the corporation at any meeting of the shareholders of any other 
corporation in which this corporation then holds shares, and may vote this corporation’s shares in 
such other corporation in person or by proxy appointed by him, provided that the board of 
directors may from time to time confer the foregoing authority upon any other person or persons. 

Section6.03. Secretary. The secretary shall keep the minutes of meetings of the 
shareholders, board of directors and any committee, and all unanimous written consents of the 
shareholders, board of directors and any committee of the corporation, and shall see that all 
notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law, 
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and in case of his absence or refusal or neglect to do so, notices may be served by any person so 
directed by the president. The secretary shall be custodian of the corporate seal and corporate 
records, shall have the authority to authenticate the corporate records and, in general, shall 
perform all duties incident to the office. Except as may otherwise be specifically provided in a 
resolution of the board of directors, the secretary and each assistant secretary shall be a proper 
officer to take charge of the corporation’s stock transfer books and to compile the shareholder 
list pursuant to Section 3.06 above, and to impress the corporation’s seal on any instrument 
signed by the president, any vice president or any other duly authorized person, and to attest to 
the same. 

Section 6.04. Treasurer. The treasurer shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts 
and disbursements in books belonging to the corporation, and shall cause all money and other 
valuable effects to be deposited in the name and to the credit of the corporation in such 
depositories, subject to withdrawal in such manner as may be designated by the board of 
directors. He shall render to the president, the directors and the shareholders at proper times an 
account of all his transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the corporation. The 
treasurer shall be responsible for preparing and filing such financial reports, financial statements 
and returns as may be required by law. 

ARTICLE VI1 
Resignations and Vacancies 

Section 7.01. Resignations. Any director, committee member or officer may resign 
from his office at any time by written notice delivered to the corporation. A resignation shall be 
effective when the notice is delivered unless the notice specifies a later effective date or event. 
The acceptance of a resignation shall not be required to make it effective. 

Section7.02. Vacancies. If the office of any director, committee member or officer 
becomes vacant by reason of his death, resignation, disqualification, removal or otherwise, the 
shareholders or the board of directors may choose a successor to hold office for the unexpired 
term as provided in Section 4.01 and Section 5.01, as the case my be. 

ARTICLE VI11 
$aJ 

The board of directors may provide for a seal of the corporation, which shall have 
inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the state and year of its incorporation. 

ARTICLE IX 
Certificates Representing Shares 

Section 9.01. Form. Shares of the corporation may but need not be represented by 
certificates. If certificates are issued, each certificate representing shares of the corporation shall 
be in such form as may from time to time be prescribed by the board of directors, shall be 
consecutively numbered, and shall exhibit such information as may be required by applicable 
law. If certificates are not issued, then every holder of uncertificated shares shall be entitled to 
receive a certificate that complies with applicable law on request to the corporation. 
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Section 9.02. Signatures and Seal. All certificates issued for shares of the corporation 
(whether new, re-issued, or transferred) shall bear the manual or facsimile signatures of one or 
more officers designated by the board of directors or, in the absence of board designation by the 
president, a vice president, or the secretary, and also may bear an impression or facsimile of the 
corporation’s corporate seal, if any. If the person who signed either manually or in facsimile a 
share certificate no longer holds office when the certificate is issued, the certificate is 
nevertheless valid. 

Section 9.03. Ownership. The corporation shall be entitled to treat the registered owner 
of any share as the absolute owner thereof and, accordingly, shall not be bound to recognize any 
beneficial, equitable or other claim to, or interest in, such share on the part of any other person, 
whether or not it has notice thereof, except as may be expressly provided by applicable law. 

Section9.04. Transfers. Transfers of shares of the corporation may be made on the 
stock transfer books of the corporation only at the direction of the person named in the certificate 
(or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact) and upon the surrender of such certificate properly 
endorsed or accompanied by a written assignment or power of attorney properly executed, and 
with such proof of authority or authenticity of signature as the corporation (or its transfer agent) 
may require. The transfer of the shares of the corporation shall be subject to such restrictions on 
transfer, if any, as may be imposed by the articles of incorporation or bylaws of the corporation, 
or by any amendment thereof, by applicable law or by an agreement among the shareholders or 
between shareholders and the corporation. No transfer shall affect the right of the corporation to 
pay any dividend due upon the shares or to treat the holder of record as the holder-in-fact until 
the transfer has been recorded in the books of the corporation. 

Section9.05. Lost Certificates. In the event of the loss, theft or destruction of any 
certificates representing shares of the corporation or of any predecessor corporation, the 
corporation may issue (or, in the case of any such shares as to which a transfer agent and/or 
registrar have been appointed, may direct such transfer agent and/or registrar to countersign, 
register and issue) a new certificate, and cause the same to be delivered to the owner of the 
shares represented thereby, provided that the owner shall have submitted such evidence showing, 
or an affidavit reciting, the circumstances of the alleged loss, theft or destruction, and his 
ownership of the certificate, as the corporation considers satisfactory, together with any other 
facts that the corporation considers pertinent, and hrther provided that a bond of indemnity, with 
or without surety, shall have been provided in form and amount satisfactory to the corporation 
(and to its transfer agent and/or registrar, if applicable), unless the board of directors waives the 
requirement of a bond. 

ARTICLE X 
Dividends 

Subject to such restrictions or requirements as may be imposed by applicable law or the 
corporation’s articles or as may otherwise be binding upon the corporation, the board of directors 
may from time to time declare and the corporation may pay dividends on shares of the 
corporation outstanding on the dates of record fixed by the board, to be paid in cash, in property, 
or in shares of the corporation on or as of such payment or distribution dates as the board may 
prescribe. 
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ARTICLE XI 
Amendments 

These ,ylaws may be altered, amended, supplemented, repealed or temp rarily or 
permanently suspended, in whole or in part, or new bylaws may be adopted, at any duly 
constituted meeting of the board of directors or the shareholders or, alternatively, by unanimous 
written consent to corporate action without a meeting of the board of directors or the 
shareholders, as the case may be, pursuant to these bylaws and applicable law. The shareholders 
in amending or repealing a particular bylaw may provide expressly that the board of directors 
may not amend or repeal that bylaw. 

ARTICLE XIE 
Indemnification and Insurance 

Section 12.01. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by Arizona law as 
amended from time to time, the corporation shall indemnify and advance expenses to each 
person to whom indemnification and advancement of expenses may be offered under such law. 

Section 12.02. Insurance. The corporation shall have the power to purchase and,maintain 
insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the 
corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, partner, 
trustee, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise against any liability asserted against or incurred 
by such person in such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not the 
corporation would have the power to indemnifjr such person against such liability under the 
provisions of Arizona law. 

ARTICLE XI11 
General Provisions 

Section 13.01. Construction. As used in these bylaws, the masculine includes the 
feminine and the neuter as the context requires. 

Section 13.02. Books and Records. The books and records of the corporation shall be 
kept at such places within or outside of Arizona as the board of directors may fiom time to time 
determine. 

Certificate of Adoption 

The ylaws were adopted by 
to a unanimous written the board o 

consent of the bo 
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DATED as of March 22,2006. 

I BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

, 
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. The undersigned inmrpomtor hereby adopts the following Articles of Incorporation: 

L NAME 

The name of the corporation is Southern Sumise Water Company &IC. 

IL AUTHORIZED CAPITAL 

The corporation shall have authority to issue one hundred (100) shares of common stock. 

HI, PURPOSEANDINITIALBUSLNESS 

The corporation is oganized for the purpose of transacting a l l  lawful business for which 
corporations may be organized under the laws of the State of Arizona, as amended from time to 
time. The corporation initially intends to condllcf in the State of Arizona the business of 
pmviding water utility service. 

IV. XNllTIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The initial Board of Directors shall consist of thrw (3) members, who shall serve as 
dkectors until their successorri m elected and qualified, and whose names and acl&ases are as 
folIows: 

Chris Jarratt 
2845 Bristol Circle 
Oakville, Ontario, CanitdaL6H7H7 

Ian Robertson 
2845 Brktol Circle 
Oakville, Ontario, Canada L6H 7H7 

David Kerr 
2845 Bristol &le 
Odcville, Ontario, Canada UH 7H7 

.- 

V. STATUTORY AGENT 

lugonquin Water Services, UC, an Arizona limited liability company, whose business 
address is 12725 West Indian School Road, Suite D101, Avonc?.de, Arizona 85323, is hereby 
appointed the initial statutory agent for the corporation. for the State of Arizona 

http://Avonc?.de


. 

VL vKNOWN PLACE OF BUSINESS 

The street address of the corporation's known place of business is as follows: 

4055 C w w  Drive 
Sierra Vista, Arizona 85635 

MI. INCORPORATOR 

The name and address of the incorporator are as follows: 

Peter Kampian 
2845 Bristul Circle 
Oakville, Ontario, Canada L6H 7E€7 

W. ELIMINATION OFDIRECTOR LIABILITY 

To the fullest extent permitted by the Arizona Revised Statutes as the same exist or may 
be hereafter amended, no director of the corporation shall be liable to the corporation or its 
shareholders for monetary damages for any action taken or any failure to take any action as a 
director. No repeal, amendment or modification of this article, whethex direct or indirect, SJhall 
eliminate or reduce its effect with respect to any act or failure to act of a director of the 
corporation occurring prior to such repeal, Bmendment or modifidon. 

Ix INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by the Arizona Revised Statutes as the same exist or may 
be hereafter mended, the copration shall indemnify and advance expenses to any person who 
incurs expenses or liabilities by reason of the fact he OX she is or was an officer or director of the 
corporation or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee 
or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee 
benefit plan or other entity. The foregoing Merdfication and advmma of expenses shall 
be mandatory in all circmstances in which the same are permitted by law. No repeal, 
amendment or modification of this article, whether direct or indirect, shall eliminate or reduce its 
e&t with respect to any matter giving rise to indemnification and advancement of expenses 
owurring prior to such repeal, amendment or modification. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned incOrporator has executed these Articles of 
hcorporation this 21' day of March, 2006. 

2 



CONSENT OF STATUTORY AGENT 
OF 

SOuTlBLlERN SUNRISE WATER COMPANY INC. 

The undersigned, having been named in the Articles of Incorporation of Southern Sunrise 

Water Company hc, an Arizona corporation, as its statutory agent for the State of Arizona, 
hereby confiRlls that it has been notified of the appointment and that it accepts the appointment. 

DATED: 'March21a, 2006. 

A I L G O N Q ~  WATER SERVICES, LLC, 
all Arizona limited liability company 

- 
Title: Manager 

12725 West Indian School Road 
Suite DIOl 
Avondale, Arizona 85323 
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\ ,  \ .  
COMMISSIONERS 

JEFF HATCH-MILLER - Chairman 
WILLIAM A MUNDELL 

MARC SPITZER 
MIKE GLEASON 

KRISTIN K. MAYES 

BRIAN C. MCNEIL 
Executive Director 

DAVID RABER 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION Director, Corporations Division 

March 28, 2006 

NANCY MOORMAN 
3003 N CENTRAL AVE SUITE 2600 
PHOENIX, AZ 85012-2913 

RE: SOUTHERN SUNRISE WATER COMPAMT INC. 
File Number: -1272124-7 

We are pleased to notify you that your Articles of Incorporation 
were filed on March 22, 2006, 

You must publish a copy of your Articles of Incorporation, The publi- 
cation must be in a newspaper of general circulation in the county of 
the known place of business in Arizona (as filed with the Commission) 
for three (3) consecutive publications. A list of newspapers is 
available on the Commission web site. An affidavit from the newpaper, 
evidencing such publication, must be delivered to the Commission for 
filing within NINETY (90) DAYS from the date of this letter, Make 
sure the newspaper publishes the corporation documents using the exact 
name filed with the Commission, 

All corporations transacting business in Arizona are required to file 
an Annual Report with the Commission, on the anniversary of the date 
of incorporation, Each year, a preprinted Annual Report form will be 
mailed to the corporation's known place of business approximately two 
months prior to the due date of the report, Should the report fail to 
arrive, contact the Commission, It is imperative that corporations 
notify the Commission immediately (in writing) if they change their 
corporate address, statutory agent or agent address. Address change 
orders must be executed (signed) by a corporate officer, Postal for- 
warding orders are not sufficient, 

The Commission strongly recommends that you periodically check Commis- 
sion records regarding the corporation, The Commission web site 
www.cc,state.az.us/corp contains information specific to each 
corporation of record and is a good general source of information, 

If you have questions or need of further information, please contact 
us at (602) 542-3135 in Phoenix, (520) 628-6560 in Tucson, or Toll 
Free (Arizona residents only) at 1-800-345-5819. 

Sincerely, 

Linda Johnson 
Examiner 
Corporations Division 

1300 WEST WASHINGTON, PHOENIX, ARIZONA 86007-2929 / 400 WEST CONGRESS STREET, TUCSON, ARIZONA 86701-1347 CF: 04 www.os.stste.az.ue - 8026429135 

REV, 01/2004 
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EXHIBIT 



Cochise Water Company 
Proposed Capital I$provaments t 

Naranja Well Site 

Project Description 

Add meters to wells 
Construct a minimum 6 ft. high chain link fence with barbed wire 800 L.F. 
Construct 12 ft wide chain link gate 
Repair 5 hp booster pump 
Rebuild Electrical Control and wiring system 
Replace Air Compressor and controls on Pressure Tank 
Replace Guages on Booster and Transfer Pumps 
Replace check valves on booster and transfer pumps 
Build concrete pads to mount booster and transfer pumps 
Install well pump high level shut off level contoller to storage tank 
Install low level sensor in storage tank for booster & transfer pump shut off 
Install telemetry system to start and stop transfer pumps filling Horseshoe storage 
Add sampling taps to wells 
Survey property to establish property boundaries of well site 
Remove old storage tank and trash and grade well site 

Jaxell Road Well site 

Add Meter to well 
Add additional booster pump 
Survey property to establish property boundaries of well site 

Total 

Total 

Long Term Improvements 

Add additional Storage at Naranja 
Develop more well capacity at Naranja or elsewhere 
Add chlorination to both sites 
Build equipment storage facility at Naranja and remove building at Horseshoe Ranch. 
Replace Distribution system 
Reconnect customers that are being served directly off transmission line 

2ost 

$1 O,OO( 
$12,00( 

$80( 
$50( 

$1 O,OO( 
$1 ,OO( 
$1 ,OO( 

$1 ,OO( 

$1 0,ooc 

$1 ,OO( 

$50( 

$5,00( 
$5,00C 

$50C 

$5,00( 
$63,30( 

$3,50C 
$3,50C 

$8,00C 
$1 ,ooc 



Horseshoe Ranch Water Company 
Proposed Capital Improvements 

lain Storage and Presure Tank Site 

'roject Description 

leplace 3 inch meter measuring transfer flow from Cochise 
leplace fence with a minimum 6 ft. high chain link fence with barbed wire 200 L.F. 
:onstruct 12 ft wide chain link gate 
:eplace 2 - 7.5 hp booster pumps 
{ebuild Electrical Control and wiring system 
teplace 3,000 gallon pressure tank 
Iesign and construct interconnection with Bella Vista south system 
?epair doors on storage building 
rdd air relief valve to tranmission line from Cochise and grade and secure site 
;urvey property to establish property boundaries of storage & well sites 

Tota 

.ong Term Improvements 

Cedisign entire main storage and booster site. Add storage capacity 
letermine if 38,000 gallon storage tank at secondary site is necessary. Either rebuild it 
lr remove and sell land 
idd chlorination to both sites 
luild equipment storage facility at Naranja and remove building at Horseshoe Ranch. 
rbandon Sanks well and dispose of land 
Zeplace Distribution system 

:ost 

$3,000 
$3,000 

$800 
$5,000 

$1 3,000 
$10,000 

$1 0,000 
$1,000 

$1,000 
$6,000 

$52,800 



Miracle Valley Water Company 
Proposed Capital Improvements 

lain Well Site 

'roject Description 

,dd meter to well 
:onstruct a minimum 6 ft. high chain link fence with barbed wire 400 L.F. 
:onstruct 12 ft wide chain link gate 
,dd two 7.5 hp booster pumps 
!ebuild Electrical Control and wiring system 
,dd storage tank Minimum 150,000 gallons 
:eplace 5,000 gallon pressure tank 
,dd sampling tap to well 
#urvey property to establish property boundaries of two well sites 

Total 

lote: If it is determined that the existing well site has no room for storage, construct 
torage and pressure tank at site two and pipe well to that site. Then develop second well 

.ong Term Improvements 

,dd chlorination 
,dd additional storage and well capacity 
!eplace Distribution system 

:ost 

$3,501 
$6,001 

$801 
$5,001 

$10,001 
$1 50,001 

$20,001 
$501 

$2,001 
$197,801 
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Docket No. W-01646A-05-0506 et al. 

Exhibit 5 

MIRACLE VALLEY WATER COMPANY, INC. RCN & RCND 

Background of Water System 

Miracle Valley Water Company, Inc. received its Certificate of Convenience and Necessity on 
August 12, 1959. The area being served is located approximately 12 miles southeast of Sierra 
Vista on Highway 92 in Mir'acle Valley. The Certificated area serves the southern half of Section 
31, Township 23S, Range 22E. The area served is comprised of modest homes on medium and 
large sized residential lots. The roads are unimproved dirt and gravel. 

Description of System 

This system currently serves approximately 255 customers and is regulated by the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality as Public Water System No. 02-023. The system consists 
of one active well site and one well site which has electrical power to it but no approval for use 
on the system. In addition, MY. McLain contends that the second well site belongs to the Cochise 
Water system. The active well site consists of a pressure tank and a well. The well is fenced in a 
12 ft x 12 ft area. A 5,000 gallon pressure tank is located outside the fenced area. There is no 
flow meter. There is no storage tank or booster pumps. The well pump was replaced in 2004. It 
is reported that there are 9,650 ft of 3 inch diameter and 14,750 ft. of 4 inch diameter distribution 
piping. The second well site has a we11 with a pump in it, but the well has never received 
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality ("ADEQ") approval. There is also a large steel 
vessel which was moved to the site to someday be used as storage. There is a chain link fence 
surrounding the site, but it is in disrepair. According to the assessor office records, there appears 
to be more than one piece of land belonging to the water system. 

This system is in very poor condition. There is no storage tank or booster pumps. This requires 
the well pump to cycle on and off frequently which causes premature failure of the well pump. 
The pressure tank is in poor condition and it is dangerous and should not be in service. The 
electrical panels need replacement. The 'system has frequent line breaks. There.are low pressure 
problems. There are poor or nonexistent records of where the distribution system is installed. 
Much of the system was installed without ADEQ approval. 

Plant Condition 

The system has only one well and one pressure tank. Storage tanks and booster pumps will have 
to be added. It is unknown whether there is enough room for a storage tank at well site 1. The 
well site will have to be completely redesigned and rebuilt to new standards. Well site 2 will 
have to completely rebuilt. A large portion of the distribution system will have to be replaced. 

68412 DEClSlOM Mil. 
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Docket No. W-01646A-05-0506 et al. 

Exhibit 6 

HORSESHOE RANCH WATER COMPANY RCN & RCND 

Background of Water System 

Horseshoe Ranch Water Company received its Certificate of Convenience and Necessity on 
August 3, 1973. The area being-served is located approximately 8 miles south of Sierra Vista on 
Highway 92 at Hereford R;ad in Cochise County. The Certificated area serves part of the 
northwest quarter of Section 17, Township 23S, Range 21E. The area served is comprised of 
two platted subdivisions of approximately 40 acres each. Another 40 acres area is comprised of 
various size parcels of land. Horseshoe Ranch subdivision consists of 68 mobile home lots. 
Circle S Ranch Estates consists of 76 residential lots. The roads in the two subdivisions are 
paved. The remainder of the roads are dirt. 

Description of System 

This system currently serves approximately 220 customers and i by the ~ ~ o n a  
Department of Environmental Quality as Public Water System No. 02- e system has no 
wells and receives its water through 5,600 Lineal Feet of 4 inch diaineter transmission main from 
Cochise Water. The water from the Cochise Water system enters the main storage and booster 
site through a 2-inch meter. The main site consists of a 22,000 gallon and a 10,000 gallon 
storage tank, a 3,000 gallon pressure tank, a 7.5 hp and 5 hp booster pumps and a 20' x 28 'brick 
shed. The area is fenced. A second fenced site contains a 38,000 gallon storage tank which was 
installed in 1989. There is approximately 35,000 feet of 
distribution piping. Much of the distribution system installed outside of the two subdivisions is 
undersized PVC. There are low pressure problems. 

Plant Condition 

The storage tanks at the main stsrage site appear to be in satisfactory cQndition,. but need to be 
drained, inspected, and coated. The pressure tank should be inspected and possibly replaced. 
The electrical wiring at the site is old and needs replacement. There were piping leaks at the 
booster pumps during the inspection. The 38,000 gallon storage tank needs to be drained, 
inspected and rekbished. The only way this tank will provide improved pressure for the 
customers at the highest elevations is if the distribution piping is reconfigured and a pressure 
tank and booster pumps are installed to serve the upper zone. The dry well site is not used and 
useful. Much of the distribution system installed in the unsubdivided areas is undersized and 
poorly installed and will have to be replaced. 

A third site contains a dry well. 
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Exhibit 7 

Docket No. W-01646A-05-0506 et al. 

COCHISE WATER COMPANY RCN & RCND 

Backmound of Water System 

Cochise Water Company received its Certificate of Convenience and Necessity on 
October 3 1, 1962. The areabeing served is located approximately 8 miles south of Sierra 
Vista on Highway 92 afHereford Road in Gochise County. The Certificated area serves 
the northeast quarter and southern half of Section 5 as well as the northern half and 
southeast quarter of Section 8, Township 23S, Range 21E. The area served is comprised 
of platted subdivisions which contain lots of various sizes fiom one acre to five acres as 
well as numerous un-subdivided parcels. All roads are unpaved gravel or dirt. 

Description of System 

This system currently serves approximately 370 customers and is regulated by the 
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality as Public Water System No. 02-01 1. The 
system has two main storage and production sites. The Naranja site consists of four 
wells, a 170,000 gallon storage tank, a 5,000 gallon pressure tank, 
pumps, two 10 hp transfer pumps to transfer water to the Horseshoe R 
area fence has been tom down. There is a 12,000 gallon storage tank that is not 
connected to the system. The Jaxel Road site consists of one well, one 10,500 gallon 
storage tank, one 1,000 gallon pressure tank, and one 5 hp booster pump. The area is 
fenced. There are low There is approximately 100,000 feet of distribution piping. 
pressure problems in some areas. 

Plant Condition 

The storage tanks, pressure tanks and booster pumps at the main Naranja production and 
storage site appear in satisfactory condition. It is 4.7 acres in size. The wells have had 
numerous outages. The wells were drilled as domestic wells with small diameter casings 
which makes them difficult to equip and maintain. New wells will most likely have to be 
drilled. The Jaxel Road site is in fair condition. Much of the distribution system is 
undersized and should be replaced over time. 

I 
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Southern Sunrise Water Company 
REPRESENTATIVE RATE SCHEDULE 

Exhibit 
Schedule 4 
Page 1 
Witness: Bourassa 

PROPOSED RATES 
LINE 
NO. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
52 

METER SIZE 
Residential 
MONTHLY MINIMUMS: 
518 x 314 And 
314 
1 
1 112 
2 
3 
4 
6 
8 

MONTHLY GALLONS IN 
MINIMUM MINIMUM 

$ 31 .OO 
$ 46 50 
$ 77.50 
$ 155 00 
$ 248.00 
$ 496.00 
$ 775.00 
$ 930.00 
$ 1,550 00 

COMMODITY CHARGE PROPOSED RATES: 

Residential 518 and 314 Inch 
Charge per 1,000 gallons for usage 
in excess of 0 gallons up to gals 

over 5,001 gallons up to gals 
over 10,000 gals 

Residential 1 Inch and Larser 
Charge per 1,000 gallons for usage 
in excess of 0 gallons up to gals 

over 25,001 gallons up to gals 
over 45,000 gals 



Line 
No. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 

Southern Sunrise Water Company 
REPRESENTATIVERATESCHEDULE 

COMMODITY CHARGE PROPOSED RATES (continued): 

lrriqation meters 
Charge per 1,000 gallons for usage 
in excess of 0 gallons up to 5 0  

over 90,o 

Exhibit 
Schedule 4 
Page 2 
Witness: Bourassa 

0 gals 
0 gals 

OTHER 

Standpipe or bulk water per 
1,000 gallons 

HOOK-UP FEE 

All Builders / Developers are required to pay a hook-up fee of 
$ 

a water connection of 518 x 3 14 or 3/ 4 inch water meter 
Payments are listed for each Water Meter Size below: 

per lot, for connection to the system based on 

Water 
Meter Size 
518 x 314 
314 
1 
1 112 
2 

4 
6 

0 



Southern Sunrise Water Company 
REPRESENTATIVE RATE SCHEDULES 

STATEMENT OF CHARGES 

LINE 
NO 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 
54 

A. Establishment of Service per Rule R14-2-403.D 
Establishment of Service, after hours 
per rule R14-2-403.D.2 

B. Re-establishment of Service per Rule 14-2-403.D 

C. Reconnection of service per Rule R14-2-403.D.1 

D. Charge for moving meter at customer request per 
Rule R14-2-405.8.5 

E. After hours service charge, per hour, R14-2-403.D 

F. Minimum Deposit per Rule R-14-2-403.B 

H. Meter Reread per Rule R14-2-408 

I .  Charge for NSF Check per Rule R14-2-409.F.1 

J. Late payment charge for delinquent bills 
as defined in Rule R14-2-409.C.1 

K. Deferred Payment Finance Charge, R14-2-409.G 

L. Service Line and Meter Installation per R14-12-405.9 
5/8 x 3/4 inch 
314 inch 
1 inch 
1 1/2 inch 
2 Inch - Turbo 
2 inch - Compound 
3 inch -Turbo 
3 Inch - Compound 
4 Inch - Turbo 
4 inch - Compound 
6 Inch -Turbo 
6 inch - Compound 
8 inch 

M. Main Extension and additional facilities agreements, 
per Rule R14-2-406.8 

Exhibit 
Schedule 5 
Page 1 
Witness: Bourassa 

Proposed 
$ 25.00 
$ 35.00 

see (a) 

$ 35.00 

@ cost 

$ 

cost 

1.50% 

1.50% 

@COST (b) 

N. All Revenue related taxes will be charged customers. 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 
*The Company has adopted the Rules and Regulation established by the Commission 
as the basis for its operating procedures. AAC R14-204-01 Through ACC R14-2-411 
will be controlling of Company procedures, unless specific Commission Orders 
provide otherwise. 
(a) Monthly minimum times months off the system 
(b) Cost to include parts, labor, overhead, and all applicable taxes, including income tax 
(c) If meter is reading correct per rule. 
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bEI'Ol'tE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMPJIISSION 
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DECISION NO. I- , 

I 

-7 -j,/ ,+' ' f 2! :'do. U-1868 

rn claaght .,&g:, orzssn, 

,!J:xfc@ having b0on givstn as provided by law, the above enti 

In for lisaring on October 18, 1962 on application of COG 

m t t o a ,  for Q ocsrtiffcate of conveniance and nsooeoity to serve water i n  , 

i 

.lj>;)lictmt tvae represen d by i t a  sttornay, Dushan 8.  Vlahovich,' who 
I 

pwsaxei2 :cistlmony,' both oral and dccum(anfaty, in support of tho applistlticn. 

*#?%8SF0P.Ea E IS QRGERED thetf ihcs appibation bQ and the S O M ~  i s  

upprqved, and sppficl I 
I 

this crdw granted ip cer9FSicata 

zt water qstsm under WQ ruies 

an'in the araa mor0 pertlcularfy described a 

South half of the Northeaat quarter 
Ssction S: and the East half and the 
Sewion 5 ,  aU In Township 23 South, 

& M., 
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BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

AE FAROES 
Chairman 

CHARLES H. GARLAND 
Commissioner 

RUSSELL WILLIAMS 
Commissioner 

IN THE MATTER O F  THE APPLICATION OF MAURICE M. SINKS Am 
E. ELIZABETH SINKS. HUSBAND AND W I F E ,  DBA RANCH WATER CO., 
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY AUTHORIZING 
"HE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION Am MAINTENANCE O F  A DOMFSTIC- 
WATER UTILITY I N  THE AREA DESCRIBED AS TRE NORTH HALF (I?-$) 
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW&) AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER 
(SE*) O F  THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (W$) O F  SECTION 17, "OWN- 

ARIZONA. 
. SHIP 23 SOUTH, RANGE 21 EAST, G&SRE!&M, COCHISE COUNTY, 

DOCRET NO. U-2235 

OPINION AND ORDER 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

The above-entit led and numbered matter  came on f o r  

hearing before Chairman A 1  Faron s i t t i n g  i n  Tucson, Arizona, 

on Ju ly  12, 1973. 

Applicant was represented by Z t s  a t to rney ,  Sidney L. 

&in, and there  was  no appearance i n  opposi t ion t o  t h e  appl i -  

cat ion.  

The t r a n s c r i p t  of s a id  hear ing has now been read by 

each Commissioner, and it is  t h e i r  opinion t h a t  based on the 

testimony presented, and the  records and f i l e s ' i n  the matter, 

a need and demand does exis t  f o r  such service,  and the grant ing 

.of the  appl ica t ion  would be i n  the  publ ic  interest .  

WHEREFORE, I T  IS  ORDERED t h a t  t h i s  order  s h a l l  

cons t i t u t e  and be a c e r t i f i c a t e  of convenience and necessi ty ,  

pursuant t o  940-281, Arizona Revised S ta tu tes ,  au thor iz ing  

Applicant herein t o  construct ,  operate  and maintain a publ ic  

domestic water u t i l i t y  i n  the a r e a  described as the North 

Half (N&) of the Northwest Quarter  (NW+ 

Quarter ( S E t )  of the Northwest Quarter  (W*) of Sect ion 17, 

Township 23 d u t h ,  Range 2 l & t ,  G&SRB&M, Cochise County, 

Arizona. 

and t h e  Southeast 
/ / 

J 

I T  IS FURTHER ORDERED t h a t  the r a t e s  approved and 

which s h a l l  apply f o r  Applicant wi th in  the above described 

I area  a r e  8 s  follows: 



DOCKET NO. U-2235 DECISION NO. d3-5-3r 
$6.00 per monvh f o r  the f i rs t  2,000 gallons 

of water used per month per customer 

$1.00 per  1,000 gallons f o r  a l l  water used 
per  month per  customer i n  excess of 
of the f i rs t  2,000 gallons.  

I T  IS  FURTHER ORDERED t h a t  a11 connections shall 

be metered at the t i m e  t he  i n i t i a l  service i s  in s t a l l ed .  t 

I T  IS FURTKER ORDERED that  a l l  o ther  rates and 

charges shall be i n  compliance w i t h  Rules and Regulations 

Relating t o  the Operation of Domestic Water U t i l i t i e s  Companies, 

effect ive December 9, 1965. 

BY ORDER O F  THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION. 

I X  FITIJ’ZSS IEEREGF, I, GEORGZ ivi. DEXPSKi, &ecuUiivt: 
Secretary of t he  Arizona Corporation Commission, have 
hereunto set  m y  hand and caused the o f f i c i a l  s e a l  of 
this Commission t o  be affixed, a t  the  CapJtol i n  t$e 

d City of Phoenix, t h i s  .-?,,,&‘ day of [[ LL<-/-I( .& +A, 

G E O R G ~  M. DEMPSEY f 

EXECUTrVE SECRETARY 
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A u d i t o r s '  R e p o r t  

To the Unitholders of Algonquin Power Income Fund 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Algonquin Power Income Fund as at December 3 1 , 2 0 0 5  
and 2004 and the consolidated statements of earnings and deficits and cash f lows for the years then ended. 
These f inancial statements are the responsibiiity of the Fund's management .  Our responsibi l i ty is to 

express an opinion on these financiai statements based on ou r  audits. 
We conducted our  audits in accordance wi th  Canadian general ly accepted audit ing standards. Those 

standards require that we pian and per form an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the f inancial 
statements are free of mater ia l  misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a tes t  basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. An audit also inciudes assessing the 

accounting principles used and signif icant est imates made by management ,  as we l l  as evaluating the 
overail financial statement presentation. 

In ou r  opinion, these consolidated f inancial statements present fairly, i n  a l l  ma te r ia l  respects, the 

f inancial posit ion of the Fund as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the resul ts  of i ts  operations and i ts  

cash fiows for the years then ended in  accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principies. 

Chartered Accountants 

[signed] KPMG LLP 

Toronto, Canada 
March 7, 2006 
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C o n s o l i d a t e d  B a l a n c e  S h e e t s  
December 31,2005 and December 31 ~ 2004 
(thousands of Canadian dollars) 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivabie 

Prepaid expenses 

Current port ion of notes receivable [note 31 
Future income t a x  asset [note 1 1  1 

2005 2004 
$ 11,363 $ 34,348 

29,206 25,819 
1,918 2,060 
2,791 2,589 

18 

Long-term investments (note 31 
Future non-current income tax asset (note 111 

Capital assets, net of accumulated amortization (note 4) 
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization (note 5 )  
Restricted cash 
Deferred costs (net of accumulated amortization of $2,425, (2004 - $1,3831 

45,278 64,834 
57,489 48,561 
7,719 6,425 

627,652 610,756 
76,848 83,677 
3,458 3,728 
5.357 6.81 5 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to Algonquin Power Group [note 121 
Cash distribution payable 
Current portion of long-term liabilities [notes 7 and 91 
Current income tax liability 
Future income tax l iability [note 1 1 1  

Long-term liabilities (notes 6 and 7) 
Convertible debentures (note 81 
Other long-term liabilities (note 9 )  
Deferred credits 

Future non-current income tax liability (note 11) 
Unitholders' equity 

Trust units (note 101 
Deficit 

$ 823,801 $ 824,796 

$ 28,585 $ 33,105 
62 99 

10,677 10,677 
1.445 1,666 
435 596 

1,143 1,449 
42.347 47,592 
157,002 120,085 
85,000 85,000 
10,435 8,960 
19,102 12,124 
56,917 55,764 

654,176 654,176 
(201,1781 (1 58,9051 
452,998 495,271 

Commitments and contingencies (notes 2 and 131 
Guarantees (note 201 
Subsequent events (note 211 

$ 823,801 $ 824,796 
See accompanying notes to the consolidated f inancial statements 

Approved by the Trustees 
Isignedl George Steeves Isignedl Ken Moore 
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Consolidated Statements of Earninas and Def 
For the years ended December 31,2005 and December 31,2004 
(thousands of Canadian dollars except per trust unit) 

cit 

Revenue 
Energy saies 

Waste disposai fees 
Water reclamation and distr ibution 
Other revenue 

Expenses 
0 pe ra t ing 

Amortization of capital assets 

Amortization of intangibie assets 
Management costs (note 121 
Administrative expenses 
Withholding taxes 

Gain on foreign exchange 

2005 2004 
$ 136,038 $ 122,981 

13,031 14,086 
28,371 23,456 

1,884 
179,324 160,523 

106,691 94,640 
27,325 26,730 

6,463 5,565 
825 777 

5,681 5.596 
1,177 483 

11,7441 (2.6011 

Earnings before undernoted 

Interest expense 
Interest, dividend and other income [note 171 
Write down of fixed assets and intangible assets (notes 4 and 51 

Earnings before income taxes and minority interest 

Current income taxes [note 1 1 1  
Future income taxes (note 1 1  1 

146,418 131,190 
32,906 29,333 

( 1  6,3791 11 2,4401 
11,398 10,943 
13.5331 11,9321 
(8,5141 13,4291 
24,392 25,904 

854 1,105 
1,750 1,180 

Mi nori ty in teres t 

Net earnings 

Deficit, beginning of year 

Cash distributions (note 151 

Deficit, end of year 

Basic and diiuted net earnings per trust unit (note 161 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 

2,604 2,285 
81 7 

21,788 22,802 

11 58,9051 (1  18.3371 
(64,061 1 163.3701 

$ (201,1781 $ (158,9051 

$ 0.31 $ 0.33 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31,2005 and December 31,2004 
(thousands of Canadian dollars) 

Operating Activities 
Net earnings 
Items not affecting cash 

Amortization of capital assets 
Amortization of intangible assets 
Other amoi  tization 
Minority interest 
Distribution received in excess of equity income 
Future income taxes 
Write down of fixed and intangible assets 
Airsource commitment  fee [note 31 
Gain on foreign exchange 

Changes in  non-cash operating working capital 

Financing Activities 
Cash distributions 
Issue costs of t rust  units 
Convertible debenture issue [note 81 
Expenses of convertible debenture issue [note 81 
Deferred costs 
Increase in long-term liabilities 
Decrease in long-term Liabilities 
Deferred credits 
Other 

Investing Activities 
Decrease in  restricted cash 
Receipt of principal on notes receivable 
Additions to capital assets 
Acquisition of notes receivable 
Acquisitions of operating entities net of cash acquired (note 2) 

Effect of exchange rate differences on cash and cash equivalents 
Increase / [decrease] i n  cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Suppiemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid during the year for interest expense 
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 
Nan-cash 
Issue of t rust  units to retire convertible debentures of KMS 

See accompanying notes to  the consolidated financial statements 

2005 2004 

$ 21,788 $ 22,802 

27.325 26,730 
6,463 5,565 
1,339 2,331 

81 7 
208 1161 

1,750 1,180 
3,533 1,932 
3,228 500 
12,0231 12,4601 

63,611 59,381 
(7,9321 7,204 
55,679 66.585 

164,061 1 (63,3701 
I7001 

85,000 
205 (4,1001 

I1 - 1  541 12,3051 
93,080 30,000 
155,3101 171,969] 

12901 426 
317 I1 ,I 171 

127,2131 128,1351 

270 235 
9,697 21,988 

115,9121 I1 7,3361 
I1 6,241 1 113,9173 
128.9521 [I 5,1591 
[51,138) 124,189) 

13131 11.1511 
122,9851 13,110 
34,348 21,238 

$ 11,363 $ 34,348 

$ 15,753 $ 9,441 
$ 871 $ 1,624 

$ - $ 16,663 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
( i n  thousands o f  Canadian do l l a rs  e x c e p t  as no ted  and p e r  t rus t  u n i t )  

Algonquin Power Income Fund [ the "Fund"] i s  a n  open-ended, unincorporated t rust  established pursuant to  the 

Declaration of Trust dated September 8, 1997, as amended, under the laws of the Province of Ontario. The Fund's 
principal business activity is the ownership, directly o r  indirectly, of generating and infrastructure facilities. through 
investments i n  securit ies of subsidiaries including Limited partnerships and other  trusts. The activities of the 

subsidiaries may be financed through equity contr ibutions, interest bearing notes and third party project debt as 

described in the notes to  the f inancial statements. The revolving credit facility and the convertible debentures. are 
direct obligations of the Fund, 

The Trustees declare on a month ly  basis, distr ibutions to the Unitholders. Currently such distributions are $0.92 
per  unit  on an annualized basis. 

The Fund is managed by Algonquin Power Management Inc. ("APMI"], a company wholiy owned by the four principal 
employees of APMl who provide management  services for  the Fund. A major i ty  of the shareholders of APMl 
indirectly own Algonquin Air l ink Limited Partnership which owns an aircraft the Fund charters. The sharehoiders of 
APMl own Algonquin Property LP which teases the corporate office to  the Fund. Collectively, these enti t ies are 

referred to as the Algonquin Power Group. 

1. Significant accounting policies 

(a] Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated f inancial s ta tements of the Fund have been prepared in  accordance wi th  accounting principles 

generally accepted i n  Canada and include the consolidated accounts of a l l  of its subsidiaries The Fund consolidates 

i ts proportionate share in the Valley Power Limited Partnership. 

I n  June 2003, the ClCA issued Accounting Guideline 15, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" ("AcG-l5"].  

AcG-15 addresses the application of consolidation principles to certain entities that are subject to  control on a basis 

of cont ro l  o ther  then ownership o f  voting interests. AcG-I5 addresses when  an enterprise should include the 

assets, l iabi l i t ies and resul ts  of activities of such an enti ty in i ts  consol idated f inancial statements. The Fund 
adopted AcG-I5 on a retroactive basis. The adoption had no impact on net earnings o r  opening deficit. 

A l i  significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. 

[ b l  Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash deposited at banks and highly-liquid investments wi th  originai maturi t ies of 

90 days o r  less. 

(c] Restricted cash 

Cash reserves segregated f rom the Fund's cash balances are maintained in  accounts administered by a separate 
agent and disclosed separately in these consolidated f inancial statements as the Fund cannot access th is  cash 

without the prior authorization of parties not related to the Fund. 



[d) Capital assets 

Capital assets, being land. facilities and equipment, are recorded at cost. Development costs, including the cost of 

acquir ing o r  constructing faci l i t ies together wi th  the related interest costs during the period of construction are 
capitalized. Improvements that  increase o r  prolong the service l i fe o r  capacity of an asset are capitalized. 

Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. 

The facilities and equipment, which inciude ovei-hauls. are amortized on a straight- l ine basis over their estimated 
usefu l  lives. For facilities these periods range f rom 1 5  t o  40 years. Facility equipment is amort ized over 2 to 10 
years. 

[el Intangible assets 
Power purchase contracts acquired are amortized on a sti-arght-line basis over the i-ernaining te rm of the contract. 
These periods range from 6 to 1 5  years from date of acquisition. 

Customer relationships are amort ized on a straight-Line basis over 40 years. 

[ f ]  Impairment of Long-lived assets 

The Fund reviews capitai assets and intangible assets for impairment whenever events o r  changes in circumstances 

indicate the carrying amount  may not be recoverable. Recoverability i s  measured by comparing the carrying 

amount of an asset to expected future cash fiows. If the carrying amount exceeds the expected future cash flows, 
the asset is writ ten down to its fair market value. 

[g] Notes receivable 
Notes receivabie are carried at cost. A provision for credit losses on notes receivable is charged to the statement of 

earnings and deficit t o  cover any losses of principal and accrued interest. 

[h] Deferred casts 
Deferred costs, which inciude the costs of arranging the credit facility, costs associated w i th  the issuance of 

convertible debentures, costs associated wi th  periodic customer rate reviews wi th  the ut i i i ty governing bodies for 

the water reclamation and distr ibution facilities, are amort ized on a straight-line basis over the t e r m  of the expected 

benefit being 2 to 7 years. 

[ i l  Long-term investments 
Investments i n  which the Fund has significant inf luence but not cont ro l  o r  joint cont ro l  are accounted using the 

equity method. The Fund records i ts share i n  the income o r  loss of i ts investees in interest, dividend and other 

income in the consolidated statement of earnings and deficit. A l l  other equity investments where the Fund does not 
have significant inf luence o r  cont ro l  are accounted for- under  the cost method. Under  the cost method of 

accounting, investments are carr ied at cost and are adjusted only for  other-than-temporary ded ines  in v a h e ,  
distributions of earnings and addit ional investments. 



1 - 

ljl Deferred credits 
Certain of the water companies receive advances f rom deveiopers for water  and sewage main extensions. The 

amounts advanced are general ly repaid over a period of 10 years based on 10% of the revenues generated by the 

housing/deveiopment in the area developed. Generaiiy, advances not refunded within the specified period are not 
required to be repaid. The estimate of non-refundabie amounts is credited against capital assets. The Fund also 

ireceives contr ibutions i n  aid of construction wi th  no repayment requirements in which the fu l l  amount  is 
immediately treated as a capitai grant and netted against capital assets. 

Deferred water r ights resuit f rom a hydroelectric generating facility which has a fifty-year water (ease wi th  the f irst 

ten years of the water lease requiring no payment. An average rate was estimated over the life of the lease and a 
deferral was booked based on this estimate which is being drawn down in the last foi-ty years. 

Commitment  fees received associated with the financing to Airsource are amort ized over the t e rm of the financing 

facility, being 9 years [note 31. 

[kl Recognit ion of revenue 
Revenue derived from energy sales, which are mostly under Long-term power purchase contracts, is recorded at the 
t ime eiectr ical energy is delivered. 

Water reciamation and distr ibution revenues are recorded when deiivered to customers. 

Revenue from waste disposai is recognized on actual tonnage of waste delivered to the plant at prices specified i n  
the contract. Certain contracts include price reductions i f  specified threshoids are exceeded. Revenue for these 

contracts are recognized based on actual tonnage at  the expected price for the contract year and any amount bi l ied 

in excess of the expected rate is deferred. 

Interest and dividend income f rom long-term investments i s  recorded as earned. 

[I] Foreign currency t rans lat ion 
The fund 's  United States subsidiaries and partnership interests are considered to  be functionaliy integrated wi th  

the Canadian operations. A l l  monetary assets and l iabi l i t ies denominated i n  United States dol lars are transiated 

into Canadian doi lars at year-end exchange rates, whereas non-monetary assets and l iabi l i t ies are transiated at the 
rate i n  effect at the transaction date. The revenues and expenses of these integrated operations are translated at  

the average rate of exchange in effect during the period. The foreign currency translat ion adjustment is reflected i n  

the consolidated statement of earnings and deficit. Amortization of assets translated at  historical exchange rates 

are translated at  the same exchange rate as the assets to which they relate. 

Irn] Derivatives contracts 
The Fund enters into forward contracts to hedge against possible f luctuations i n  its exposure to the US dollar. Gains 

and losses f rom these activities are reported as adjustments to the related revenue account as they are settled and 

no balance is carried on the consolidated balance sheet. 



The Fund's policy is not t o  utilize derivative financial instruments for trading o r  speculative purposes. 

The Fund formally documents a i l  relationships between hedging instruments and hedged i tems. as w e i l  as i ts r isk 

management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions This process includes l inking a l i  
derivatives to specific assets and l iabi l i t ies on the balance sheet o r  to specific firm commitments or  forecasted 

transactions The Fund also formally assesses, both at the hedges inception and on an ongoing basis, whether  the 
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective i n  offsett ing changes in fair vaiues o r  cash 
fiows of hedged items. 

In1 Asset retirement obligations 
The fair value of est imated asset re t i rement  obl igations is  recognized in the consolidated balance sheets when 

identified and a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The asset ret irement cost, equal to the estimated 

fair value o f  the asset ret irement obiigation, is capitalized as part of the cost of the related long-lived asset. The 
asset ret irement costs are depreciated over the asset's est imated useful life and included in amortization expense 

on the consolidated statement of earnings and deficit. Increases in the asset ret irement obligation resulting f rom 
the passage of t ime  are recorded as accretion of asset ret irement obl igation i n  the consolidated statement of 

earnings and deficit. Actual expenditures incurred are charged against the accumulated obligation. 

l o ]  Income taxes 
As the Fund is  an unincorporated t rust ,  it is entitled to deduct distributions to  unithoiders to the extent of its taxable 
income and consequently, i t  is expected that  the Fund w i l l  n o t  be iiable for any mater ia l  tax as th is  w i l l  be the 

responsibiiity of the individual unitholder. Any provision for income taxes w i l l  relate solely to the income taxes of the 
Fund's wholly owned subsidiaries. 

Income taxes ai-e accounted for using the asset and liability method. Future tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for the future tax consequences attr ibutable to differences between the f inanc ia l  statement carrying amounts of 

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted o r  substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in  the years in which those temporary 

differences are expected to  be recovered o r  settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax 

rates is  recognized in earnings i n  the year that includes the date of enactment or  substantive enactment. 

A valuation allowance is recorded against future tax assets to  the extent that it is more likely than not the future tax 
asset w i l i  not be realized. 

(pl Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management t o  make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and l iabi l i t ies and disclosure of contingent assets and l iabi l i t ies at the date of these 

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Actual resuits could differ 
f rom those estimates. During the years presented, management  has made a number  of est imates and valuation 
assumptions, including the useful h e s  and recoverability of capital assets and intangible assets, the recoverabiiity 
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of notes receivable and long- term investments, the recoverability of fu ture tax assets, the port ion of aid-in 

construction payments that w i l l  not be repaid, and the fair value of f inancial inst ruments and derivatives. These 
estimates and valuation assumptions are based on present conditions and managements planned course of action, 

as we l l  as assumptions about future business and economic conditions. Should the underlying valuation 
assumptions and estimates change, the recorded amounts couid change by a mater ia l  amount, 

l q l  Comparatives 
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform wi th  current year financial presentation 

2. Acquisitions 
AI  1 1  On March 11.  2005, the Fund purchased a l l  the assets used in  the operation of five water distr ibution and water 
reclamation faciiities { " the systems"] for cash consideration of $1 1.2 rn ihon  IUS $ 9.4 mi l l ion] .  A deposit in the 

amount  of $1.4 mi l l ion [US $1.0 mil l ion]  was paid in 2004. The systems, which i n  aggregate serve approximately 

4,200 equivalent residential connections, are located i n  Texas and Illinois. The purchase and sale agreement 
provided for the acquisit ion of 3 addit ional assets, subject to regulatory approval, located i n  Missouri serving 
approximately 1,000 customers, for  a purchase price of $4.6 mil l ion [US $3.8 mil l ion]. On August 14, 2005, the Fund 

received approval f rom the regulator and completed the Missouri acquisitions. The Fund also incurred $0.4 mil l ion 

IUS $0.3 mi l l ion)  of acquisition costs. 

iil On September 21, 2005, the Fund purchased the Beaver Fails Hydro Plant. a 2.5 MW hydro electr ic generating 

station located i n  Beaver Falls. New York. for cash consideration of $1.0 mil l ion [US $0.8 mil l ion]. ELectrical energy 

produced by the facility is sold to Niagara Mohawk under a power sales contract which expires i n  2019. The Fund 
aiso incurred $0.1 mi l l ion [US $0.1 mi l l ion]  of acquisit ion costs. The Fund has included $1.8 mi l l ion [US $1.5 

mi l l ion]  i n  deferred credits related to  below market  hydro rates in the power purchase agreement which w i l l  be 

amortized over the te rm of the agreement. 

iiil On December 2, 2005, the Fund acquired the shares of Rio Rico Uti i i t ies Inc. ["Rio Rico"] Located i n  the Town of Rio 
Rico, Arizona, for $10.2 mi l l ion [US $8.8 mil i ion]. i n  the Infrastructure operating segment. The company owns and 
operates the potabie water distr ibution and water  reclamation ut i l i ty assets. The Fund aiso incurred $0.2 mi l l ion [US 
$0.2 mil l ion) of acquisition costs. The Fund w i l l  also pay to the vendor for additional customers connected wi th  Rio 

Rico over the next three years. At December 31, 2005, Rio Rico services approximately 7,200 water and wastewater 

customers. 

The acquisitions have been accounted for using the purchase method, wi th  earnings f rom operations included since 

the date of acquisition. The consideration paid by the Fund has been aliocated to net assets acquired as follows: 



Working capital 
Fixed assets 

Intangible assets 
Future non-current income tax asset 

Customer deposits 

Infrastructure Hydroelectric Total 

19,647 2,910 22,557 
3,361 3,361 
3,369 3,369 

$ 609 $ - $ 609 

11541 11541 

Deferred credits [ I  631 11,7701 11,9331 
Total purchase price 26,669 1,140 27,809 
Less: cash acquired 

Less: deposit paid in 2004 
Cash consideration paid 

11871 11871 
[ I  ,3681 11,3681 

$ 25,114 $ 1,140 $ 26,254 

Intangible assets i n  infrastructure include customer relationships that are amort ized over 40 years. 

B) On September 30, 2004, the Fund acquired an interest i n  12 landfi i l  gas powered generating stations [the "LFG 
Facilities"1 representing approximately 36MW of instai led capacity for to ta l  Consideration of $1 1,374 [US $9,0001. 
The majori ty of the LFG facilities were commissioned in  the late 1990's. The electricity produced is sold to a number 
of large utilities pursuant to long-term power purchase agreements wi th  an average termination date of 201 1 .  

The acquisition has been accounted for  using the purchase method, wi th  earnings f rom operations included f rom 

the date of acquisition. 

The consideration paid by the Fund has been allocated to net assets acquired as follows: 

Alternative Fuels 

Working capital $ 1,350 

Capital assets 8,621 
Intangible assets 1,746 

Total purchase price 11,717 

Less: cash acquired (3431 
Cash consideration paid $ 11,374 

Intangible assets represent the v a h e  of power purchase contracts acquired wi th  the LFG faci l i t ies and are 

amortized over the remaining life of the contracts from date of acquisition ranging f rom 1 to 16 years. 

C) In accordance wi th  the purchase and sale agreements of Litchfield Park and Woodmark Uti l i ty Company 

additionai amounts are required to be paid to the  vendors for additional customers connected to the facilities. For 
Litchfield Park,  these payments continue un t i l  2008 and fo r  Woodmark un t i l  2007. The addit ional payments of 
$2,698 [2004-$3,7831 are capitalized as part of the customer relationship intangible asset, gross of future income 
taxes of $1,627 12004-$2,2791. 
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2005 2004 
Litchfield Park $ 2,584 $ 3,624 
Woodmark 114 159 

$ 2.698 $ 3 ,783  
$ 2,300 $ 2,944 In US$ 

3. Long-term inves tments  
2005 2004 

Debt and equity interests, ranging in ownership between 

12.1% t o  32.4oi3, in four generating facilities. 

A 45% partnership interest in the Algonquin Power [Rattle Brook] Partnership 

A 50% partnership interest in Campbellford Limited Partnership 

Campbeil ford Note 

Note bearing interest of 9.9415% repayable i n  monthly blended instal lments 
[principal and interest] of $32,  matur ing February 28,  2015. 

Across America Note 
Note bearing interest of 12.00% repayable in quarterly installments. 
[principai and interest) of U S $ 6 3 5 ,  matur ing January 31 ,  2008. 

Airsource Note 

Note bearing interest of 11.189% maturing September 30 ,  2014. Interest decreases 
to 10.739% after conversion. No principal payments unt i l  January 1 ,  2009. 

Airl ink Advance [note 121 
Advance for expense reimbursement for business use of aircraft 

Other 

Less. current port ion 

$ 27,346 $ 30,556 

3,719 3 ,781  

392 
31,457 34,343 

3,023 

6,185 8.004 

20,481 5,512 

1,212 

945 268 

28,823 16,807 
60,280 51,150 

2,791 2,589 
$ 51,489 $ 48,5b1 

The above notes are secured by the underlying assets of the respective facilities. 

On September 1 .  2005,  the principal on the Campbellford Note of $4,738 was repaid. On this date, consolidation of 

the Campbellford investment ceased and equity accounting commenced. The proceeds of $4,738 were allocated to 

reduce the existing note receivable and the existing investment in Campbellford. A prepayment fee is due as a resuit 

of the early prepayment and included in other above. 



During 2005, the Fund has provided an additional $14,969 of financing to AirSource Power Fund I LP ["AirSource"] 

for the construction of the wind farm in St. Leon and $15,395 in letters of credit. The total outstanding balance at 
December 31,2005 was $20,481. The Fund received a $3.228 commitment  fee in 2005, which has been deferred and 
Is being amort ized over the tei-m of the financing facility being 9 years. The Fund's totai commitment  to  Airsource i s  

$74.400. 

4 .  Capital assets 

Land 
Faci li t ies 
Equipment 

2005 
Accumulated 

Cost amortization Net book value 

$ 11,504 $ $ 11,504 
71 2,845 104,650 6081 95 
14.584 6,631 7.953 

$ 738,933 $ 111,281 $ 627,652 

Facilities include $90,296 12004 - $89,8891 of net assets under capital [ease and $8,433 (2004 - $8491 of construction 
in process. In addition, $ 1  1,329 12004 - $18,557) of contributions received in aid of construction have been credited 

to facilities cost. 

The Fund has entered into an agreement to se l l  steam from the Algonquin P o w r  Energy-from-Waste facility to an 

indust r ia l  customer located in close proximity to the Algonquin Power Energy-from-Waste faciiity. To effect such 
sales. the Fund w i l i  incur  the costs of certain additionai steam generation and transmission assets. The Fund has 
commit ted to contractual  ar rangements to the project totai ing approximateiy $9,800. The Fund has incurred 

amounts totaiing $2,418 12004 -$8491 included in  assets under construction. APC is entitied to 50% of the cashflow 
above 15% re turn on investment. 

During 2005, the Fund wrote down the cost of both the capital asset and intangibie asset related to the Crossroads 
faciiity located in New Jersey to i ts estimated fair value. 

Land 
Faci li t ies 

Equipment 

2004 
Accumulated 

Cost amortization Net book value 

$ 11,504 $ -  $ 11,504 
676,120 85,228 5 9 0,8 9 2 
12,623 4,263 8,360 

$ 700,247 $ 89,491 $ 610,756 

During 2004, the Fund wrote off the cost of both the capital asset and intangible asset related to the Joliet faciiity 
located in Iliinois. Management deemed that the facility was no longer economically viable. 
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5. Intangible assets 
2005 

Accumulated 
Cost amortization Net book value 

Power purchase contracts $ 73,966 $ 25,234 $ 48,732 
Customer re la t i  ons hips 29,109 1,167 27,942 
Licenses and agreements 696 522 174 

$ 103,771 $ 26.923 $ 76,848 

2004 
Accumulated 

Cost amortization Net book value 

Power purchase contracts $ 73,966 $ 11,417 $ 62,549 
C ustomer re la t i  ons h ips 21,423 528 20,895 
Licenses and agreements 696 463 233 

$ 96,085 $ 12,408 $ 83,677 

6. Revolving credit facility 

In August 2005, the Fund renewed its revobing credit facility wi th  a syndicate of Canadian banks. The credit faciiity 

matures August 30, 2007, and has a to ta l  credit l im i t  of $145,000 and includes a $20,000 operating tine. At December 
31, 2005, $69,300 12004 - $30,000) has been drawn on the revolving credit facility and no amount was outstanding on 

the operating line. In addition, the availability of the revolving credit facility has been reduced by $44,883 12004- 
$30,878) for certain outstanding le t ters  of credit. The te rms  of the credit agreement require the Fund to pay a 

standby charge of 0.30% on the unused port ion of the revolving credit facility and maintain certain f inancial 

covenants. The facility is  secured by a fixed and fLoating charge over a l l  Fund entities. 
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7. Long-term Liabilities 

Senior Debt Long Sault Rapids 
Interest a t  ratesvarying from 10.16% to 10.21% repayable in monthly 

blended instal lments of $402,  matur ing December, 2028. 

Interest rate of 11.55% repayable i n  month ly  blended instal lments of 

$ 6 4 ,  matur ing Aprii, 2020. 

California Pollution Control Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds Series 1990A, payable monthly, 

matur ing September, 2020. US $19,200.  The effective interest rate 
for 2005 is 2.50%. (2004 - 1.29%). 

Senior Debt Chute Ford 

Sanger Bonds 

Beiia Vista Water Loans 
Water Infrastructure Financing Authority of Arizona Interest rates of 6.10% 

2005 2004 

$ 42,868 $ 43,310 

5 ,335 5,473 

22,385 23 ,109 

and 6.26% repayable in monthly and quarterly instal lments, matur ing 

December, 2017 and March, 2020.  The balance of these notes at 
December 31,  2005 was US $134 and US $1,802 respectiveiy 
(2004 - US $141 and US $1,8721. 2,257 2,422 

LitchfieId Park Sei-vice Company Bonds 
1999 and 2001 IDA Bonds. Interest rates of 5.87% and 6.71% repayable 
i n  semi-annual instal iments, matur ing October 2023 and October 2031. 
The balance of these notes at December 3 1 , 2 0 0 5  was US $5,086 and 
US $8,339,  respectiveiy (2004 - US $5,254 and US $8,4231. 

Revoiving l ine of credit interest rate is equai  to  bankers acceptance or  
LIBOR plus 1.125 YO. The effective rate of interest for 2005 was 4.16% 
I2004 - 4.56%] .  69 ,300 30,000 

Other 209 2 4  1 
$ 158,007 $ 121,017 

Less: current port ion [1,0051 19321 

15 ,653 16,462 
Revoiving ci-edit facility (note 6) 

$ 157,002 $ 120,085 

Each of the facility level debt is secured by the respective faci l i tywith no other recourse to the Fund The loans have 

certain f inancial covenants, which mus t  be maintained on a quarterly basis. Non compliance wi th  the covenants 

couid restr ict cash distr ibutions to the Fund f rom specific facilities. Interest paid on the Long-term habibties was 
$9,588 (2004 - $12,0001. 

_I 
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Principal payments due in  the next five years and thereafter are: 

2006 $ 1,005 
2007 1,097 
2008 70,503 
2009 1,313 
2010 1,440 
Thereafter 82,649 

$ 158,007 

8. Convertible debentures 

In 2004, the Fund issued 85,000 convertible unsecured subordinated debentures at a price of $1 per  debenture fo r  

gross proceeds of $85,000 and net proceeds of $81,105. The debenture issue costs of $3,895 are deferred and 

amort ized over the t e r m  of the convertible debentures. The debentures are due July 31, 201 1 and bear interest a t  

6.65% per  annum, payable semi-annuaiiy in arrears on January 31 and July 31 each year. The convert ible 
debentures are convertible into trust units of the Fund at the option of the holder at a conversion price of $10.65 per  
trust unit, being a rat io of approximately 93.8967 trust units per  $1 principal amount of debentures in t rust  units or  

cash. The debentures may not be redeemed by the Fund pr ior  to July 31, 2007. The Fund performed an evaluation 

of the embedded holder option and determined that i ts value was nominal  and as a result the entire amount of the 
debenture is classified as a liability. 

Total interest on the convertible debentures in 2005 was $5,653 (2004 - $2,5551. 

9. Other long-term liabilities 

Subsidy 

A portion of the revenue received by a subsidiary of the Fund for the sale 
of electricity was considered a subsidy. US $3,685. 

Obligation to the City of Sanger due October 1. 201 1 a t  interest rates varying 

from 5.15% to 5.55%. US $1,205 12004 - U S  $1,370). 

Each faciiity i n  the Infrastructure Division is obligated by i ts respective 
State Reguiator to collect a deposit from each customer of its facilities 
when services are connected. The deposits are refundable when allowed 

under the faciiities' regulatory agreement. 

Obligation for equipment leases. 

Bonds Payable 

Customer Deposits 

Capital Leases 

Other 

Less: current port ion 

2005 

$ 4,049 

1,405 

3,061 

2,360 

2004 

$ 3,942 

1,649 

2,850 

853 
400 

10,875 9,694 
(4401 I7341 

$ 10,435 $ 8,960 



Principal payments due in the next five years and thereafter are: 
2006 $ 440 
2007 4.497 
7008 404 
2009 274 
2010 275 
Thereafter 4,985 

$ 10.875 

Interest paid on other Long-term liabilities was $315 (2004 - $4401. 

10.Trust units 

Authorized trust units 

The Deciarat ion of Trust provides that  an unl imi ted number  of un i ts  may  be issued. Each unit represents an 
undivided beneficia\ interest i n  any distr ibution f rom the Fund and in  the net assets i n  the event of termination o r  

wind-up. Ali units are the same class wi th  equal r ights and privileges. 

Trust units are redeemable at the hoider's option at amounts related to market  prices at  the t ime  subject to a 
max imum of $250 in cash redemptions in any par t icu lar  calendar month.  Redemptions i n  excess o f  this amount  
shai i  be paid by way of a distr ibution in kind of a pro rata amount  of certain of the Fund's assets, including the 
securities purchased by the Fund, but  not  to  inciude t h e  generating facilities. 

Issued trust units 
Number of units Amount 

Balance as at December 31,2003 67,887,612 $ 638,213 
Issued pursuant to acquisition of the remaining 52.7% 
of the outstanding principal amount o f  convertible debentures 
of KMS Power Income Fund. 1,803,980 16,443 
Issue costs 170Ol 

Balance as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 69,691,597 $ 654,176 

1l.lncome taxes 

The provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of earnings represents an effective tax rate different 

than the Canadian enacted statutory rate of 33.61% (2004 - 33.66%1. The differences are as follows: 
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Earnings before income tax and minority interest 
2005 2004 

$ 24,392 $ 25,904 
Less. income taxed directly in hands of unitholders, not the Fund 135,1631 136,0901 
Earnings / [tosses] of taxable entities 110.771 I 11 0,1861 
Computed income tax expense [recovery] at Canadian statutory irate 
Increase [decrease] resu i t  i ng fro m 

Change in substantively enacted tax rate 
Operating in countries wi th  different income tax rates 
Valuation allowances 
Manufacturing and processing deduction 
Large corporations tax, alternative m in imum tax and state taxes 
Unrealized foreign exchange rate difference 
Other 

Income tax expense 

(3.6201 13,4291 

1,259 
223 996 

9,191 6,090 
121 53 

8 249 
16801 18281 

13,8981 18461 
$ 2,604 $ 2,285 

The tax effect of temporary differences at the Fund's subsidiaries that give r ise to significant portions of the future 
tax assets and future tax liabiiities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are presented below: 

2005 2004 
Future tax assets: 

Non-capital loss, debt restructuring charges and currentiy 

non-deductibie interest carryforwards $ 15,079 $ 14,626 
Unrealized foreign exchange differences on US entity debt 17,330 15,109 
Customer advances i n  aid of construction - difference between 

Total future tax assets 36,981 33,529 

3,788 9,527 

net book vaiue and tax value 4,572 3,794 

Less: Valuation aliowance 133,1931 124,0021 

Future tax liabilities: 
Capital assets -dif ferences between net book vaiue and 
u n de precia t ed capita i cost 
lntangibie assets - difference between net book value and 

(39,6901 143,4951 

cumulative eiig i ble capita i 
Other 
Total future tax liabilities 
Net future tax Liability 

Classified i n  the financial statements as: 
Future current income tax asset 
Future non-current income tax asset 
Future current income tax iiabiiity 
Future non-current income tax liability 

112,7591 (15,6781 

154,1291 (60,2971 
11,6801 11,1241 

$ 150,3411 $ 150,7701 

B -  $ 18 
7,719 6,425 

11.1431 (1,4491 
156.91 71 I55 7641 

$ (50,3411 $ l50,7701 
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At December 31, 2005, the Fund itself has financing expenses and underwriters'  fees of $4,665 12004 - $9,1481 which 
w i l l  be deductible by the Fund and which w i l l  reduce the ult imate amount taxabie to the unitholders over the next 
four years. This w i i l  be offset by additions to the unitholders' taxable income since the Fund's capital assets have an 

accounting basis which exceeds their tax basis by $8,111 I2004 - $6,6431. In addition. two trusts wholly owned by the 

Fund have capital assets wi th  an accounting basis which exceeds their tax basis by $1,706 12004 - $3,8501. 

12.Algonquin Power Group 

In addition to the transactions described in note 3 with AirSource and note 4 with APC. the following related party 

transactions occurred: 

APMl provides management  services including advice and consultat ion concerning business planning, support,  

guidance and policy making and general management services. In 2005 and 2004, APMl was paid on a cost recovery 

basis for  a l l  costs incurred and charged $825 (2004-$777). APMl is also enti t led to  an incentive fee of 25% on a l l  
distributable cash generated in excess of $0.92 per t rust  unit. During 2005 and 2004 no incentive fees were earned 
by APMI. 

The Fund has leased i ts head office faciiities since 2001 f rom an entity owned by the shareholders of APMl on a net 
basis. Base lease costs for 2005 were $296 12004 - $2631 and additional rent representing operating cost was $198 
12004 - $1201. 

When appropriate for  use in i ts  operations the Fund uti l izes chartered aircraft,  including the use of an aircraft 

owned by an affiliate of APMI. The Fund entered into an agreement and remitted $1.3 mil l ion to the affiliate as an 
advance against expense reimbursement [ including engine utilization reserves] for the Fund's business use o f  the 

aircraft. Under the te rms  of this arrangement, the Fund w i i l  have priori ty access to make use of the aircraft for a 

specified number of hours at a cost equal  solely to the third party direct operating costs incurred when flying the 

aircraft;  such direct operating costs do not provide the affiliate wi th  any profi t  o r  re turn on or  of the capital 
committed to the aircraft. 

13.Contingencies 

[a) Land and Water Leases 

Certain of the operating entities have entered into agreements to Lease either the land and/or the water r ights for 
the hydroelectric generating facility o r  to pay in lieu of property tax an amount based on electricity production. The 

te rms  of these leases continue up to  2048. These payments typically have a fixed and variable component. The 

variable fee is generally linked t o  actual power production o r  gross revenue. The Fund incurred $2,394 during 2005 
12004 - $2,9191 i n  respect of these agreements for the consolidated facilities. 
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[b l  Contingencies 

The Fund and i ts subsidiaries are invoived in various c la ims and l i t igation arising out of the ordinary course and 
conduct of its business Although such matters cannot be predicted wi th  certainty, management does not consider 

the Fund's exposure to such litigation to be mater ia l  to these financial statements. 

11.Fair value of financial instruments and derivatives 

The carrying amount of the Fund's cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, funds heid in reserve, accounts 

payable and accrued l iabi l i t ies, due to Algonquin Power Group and cash distr ibution payable, approximate fair 
market vaiue. 

The carrying amount  of the Fund's long- term investments is dependant on the underlying operations and 

accordingly a fair value is not readily availabie. The Fund has long- term l iabi l i t ies at fixed interest rates. The fair 
value of these long- term i iabi i i t ies at current rates would be $160,284 I2004 - $121,9311. The book value of these 

long- term liabilities i s  $158,007 12004 - $121,017]. The fair value o f  other long- term liabilities approximates their 
cat-rying value, wi th  the exception of the Joliet subsidy which is not readiiy available. 

Deferred credits include payments made by deveiopers to the Infrastructure Division of which a port ion based on 
revenue for the deveiopment in question needs to be paid back over t ime. These amounts do not bear interest and 
the amount  to be repaid is uncertain and not determinable. The carrying value is est imated based on h is tor ica l  

payment patterns. 

The Fund has entered into foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposure to the US dol lar as significant cash 

fiows ai-e generated in the US. The Fund sells specific amounts of currencies a t  predetermined dates and exchange 

rates which are matched wi th  the anticipated operational cash flows. Contracts in piace at December 31, 2005 

amounted to US $97,808 un t i l  2010 at a weighted average exchange rate of $1.34. The fair vaiue of the outstanding 
futures contracts is $17,053 at December 31, 2005 12004 - $16,6001. 

15.Cash distributions 

Distributable income, is distr ibuted monthly. Distr ibutions are declared to  unitholders of record on the Last day of 

the mon th  and are distr ibuted 45 days after declaration. The month ly  distr ibution for 2005 was $0.0766 per  ti-ust 
unit  for each month for a totai of $0.92 for 2005, the same as 2004. 

16.Basic and diluted net earnings per trust unit 

Net earnings per trust unit  has been calcuiated using the weighted average number of units outstanding during the 

year. The weighted average number  of units outstanding for 2005 was 69,691,592 (2004 - 68,821,431). The net  

earnings per trust unit  for 2005 was $0.31 [2004 - $0.331. The effect of conversion of the convertible debentures into 



t rust  units was not included in the computation of fully diluted net earnings pe r  trust unit as the effect of conversion 

would be anti-dilutive. 

17.0ther income 

Other income includes the following i tems. 
2005 2004 

Interest income $ 4,884 $ 2,846 
Dividend income 3,470 2,928 
Income from note receivable prepayment 3,634 
Sale of gas collection partnership interest 
Equity income 333 378 
Other 1.507 1.157 

1,204 

$ 11,398 $ 10,943 

18.Segmented information 
2005 2004 

Revenue 

Canada 
United States 

$ 48,679 $ 51,725 
130.645 108,798 

Capital assets 

Canada 
United States 

Intangible assets 

Canada 

United States 

$ 179,324 $ 160,523 

$ 309,669 $ 319,445 
317.983 291.31 1 

$ 627,652 $ 610,756 

$ 25.260 $ 27,262 
51,588 56,415 

$ 76,848 $ 83,677 

Revenues are attributabie to  the two countries based on the location of the underlying generating and infrastructure 

facilities. 

Operational segments 

The Fund identifies four business categories it operates in: hydro, natura l  gas cogeneration, aiternative fuels and 

infrastructure assets. The operations and assets for these segments are outlined on the following page: 
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Revenue 
Energy sales 
Waste disposai fees 
Water reclamation and distribution 
Other revenue 
Total Revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating profit 
Other administrat ion costs 
Interest expense 
Interest. dividend and other income 
Write down of capital and 

Amortization of capital assets 
Amortization of intangible assets 
Earnings before income taxes 

Capital assets 
Intangibie assets 
Capital expenditures 
Acquisition of operating entities 
Total assets 

intangible assets 

and minority interest 

Revenue 
Enei-gy sales 
Waste disposal fees 
Water reclamation and disti-ibution 
Total Revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating profit 
Other administrat ion costs 
In t e ires t expense 
Interest, dividend and other income 
Wi-ite down of capital and 

Amortization of capitai assets 
Amortization of intangible assets 
Earnings before income taxes 

Capital assets 
Intangible assets 
Capita l expend i t  u res 
Acquisition of operating entities 
Total assets 

intangible assets 

and minority interest 

Year ended December 31, 2005 
Hydro Cogeneration ALternative Fuel Infrastructure Admin Total 

44,102 75,674 16,262 - 136,038 
13,031 - 13,031 

28,371 - 28,371 
1,884 1,884 

44,102 77,558 29,293 28,371 - 179,324 
17,008 52,822 25,014 1 1,847 - 106,691 
27,094 24,736 4,279 16,524 - 72,633 

1991 11301 I1061 15,6043 15,9391 
1 5,O 6 8 1 19871 13851 (1,1401 (8,7991 116,3791 
1,250 3,471 6,494 44 139 11,398 

13,5331 - 13,5331 
19,6721 16,7141 (5,1551 15,7841 - 127,3251 

I l l  13,4291 12,3361 16971 - 16.4631 

13,504 13,544 2,767 8,841 114,2641 24,392 
276,850 91,591 93,072 166,139 - 627,652 

20 22,295 26,438 28,095 - 76,848 

1,140 27,812 - 28,952 
436 11201 5,234 10,127 235 15,912 

295,834 146,158 162,431 206,900 12,478 823,801 

Year ended December 31,2004 
Hydro Cogeneration Alternative Fuel Infrastructure Admin Total 

43,268 71,846 7,867 - 122,981 
14,086 - 14,086 

23,456 - 23,456 
43,268 71,846 21,953 23,456 - 160,523 
18,070 50,597 15,124 10,849 - 94,640 
25,198 21,249 6,829 12,607 - 65,883 

11371 11521 I841 (3,8821 14,2551 
15.1 771 [772l 13551 11,1351 15.0011 112,4401 
1,185 4,024 1,352 9 4,373 10,943 

11,9321 - 11.9321 
19,5981 16,7411 14,9011 15,4901 - 126,7301 

I l l  12.8491 12,2121 I5031 - 15,5651 

1 1,470 14,911 11,371 I 5,404 14,5101 25,904 
285,860 90,868 94,562 139.466 - 610,756 

21 33.775 28,775 21,106 - 83.677 
1,514 476 14,833 513 17,336 

307,280 158,023 150,234 176,159 33,100 824,796 
11,374 3,785 - 15,159 
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Al l  energy sales are earned f rom contracts wi th  iarge pubiic utilities. The following ut i l i t ies contributed more than 
10% of these totai revenues in either 2005 o r  2004: Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation 7% (2004 - IO%], Hydro 

Qubbec 13% l2004-159/0]. Pacific Gas and Electr ic 12% (2004-15%], and Connecticut Light and Power 25% 12004- 
24oiOl. The Fund has mit igated i ts credit r isk  to the extent possible by selling energy to these large ut i l i t ies i n  various 

Nor th American locations. 

19.Joint venture investments 

Fund s Proportionate Share 

Income / (iossl 
Before Income Tax Cashfiow Generated 

Ownership Year ended Net Assets f rom Operations Year 
Interest December 31 December 31 ended December 31 

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 
Valiey Power 
Limited Partnership 50% $ 152 $ 281 $ 8,463 $ 9,016 $ 746 $ 875 
Campbellford 
Limited Partnership 5 0 ‘/c [941 3,312 140 

$ 58 $ 281 $ 11,775 $ 9,016 b 886 $ 875 

2O.Guarantees 

In the no rma l  course of operations, the Fund executes agreements that provide letters of credit to third part ies to 

secure certain amounts of indebtedness or  performance. At December 31, 2005, le t ters  of credit outstanding 
amounted to $44,883 12004 - $26,7051. 

21.Subsequent events 

Subsequent to year end, the Fund drew an addit ional $26.4 mil l ion on i ts  credit facility, of which, $22.9 mil l ion was 
used to fund the construction requirements of Airsource. In addition, Management reached an agreement wi th  the 

Fund’s senior lenders to increase i ts revolving credit facility by $30.0 mil l ion to br ing the to ta l  to $175.0 mil i ion.  

There are no mater ia l  changes to the te rms  and conditions of the Fund’s revolving credit facility. This increase is 
effective unt i l  July 28. 2006. 
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